South Hams Development

Public Document Pack

; e
Management Committee ot Flomsis
District Council
Title: Agenda
Date: Wednesday, 4th October, 2017
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Council Chamber - Follaton House

Full Members:

Chairman Clir Steer
Vice Chairman ClIr Foss

Members: Cllr Bramble Cllr Hodgson
Clir Brazil Cllr Holway
Cllr Brown Cllr Pearce
Cllr Cuthbert Cllr Rowe
ClIr Hitchins ClIr Vint

Interests -
Declaration and
Restriction on
Participation:

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Commiittee
administrator:

Kathy Trant Specialist- Democratic Services 01803 861185




1. Minutes 1-16

To approve as a correct record and authorise the Chairman to
sign the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 2
August 2017;

2. Urgent Business
Brought forward at the discretion of the Chairman;

3. Division of Agenda

to consider whether the discussion of any item of business is
likely to lead to the disclosure of exempt information;

4. Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any personal or disclosable
pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such
interests they may have in any items to be considered at this
meeting;

5. Public Participation

The Chairman to advise the Committee on any requests received
from members of the public to address the meeting;

6. Planning Applications

To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary
information relating to any of the Applications on the agenda,
please select the following link and enter the relevant Planning
Reference number:
http://apps.southhams.gov.uk/PlanningSearchMVC/

(a) 0549/17/0PA 17 - 48

Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of
circa 50no0. dwellings and means of access (all other matters
reserved)

Development site at SX 710 394, Adjacent To Malborough
Park, Malborough

(b) 0266/16/FUL 49 - 56

Erection of 3 bed terrace house with garden and relocation of
garages

5 Christina Parade, Totnes


http://apps.southhams.gov.uk/PlanningSearchMVC/

Page No

(c) 2686/17/VAR 57 - 62

Application of variation of condition 2 of granted planning consent
0901/16/FUL

Admiral Court, Nelson Road, Dartmouth, Devon

7. Planning Appeals Update 63 - 68

8. Planning Performance Indicators 69 - 74



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda. ltem .1,

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE HELD AT FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES, ON WEDNESDAY,

2 AUGUST 2017
Members in attendance
* Denotes attendance o2 Denotes apology for absence
Clir I Bramble 2| Clir J M Hodgson
* | Clir J Brazil * | Clir T R Holway
* | Clir D Brown 2| Clir J A Pearce
@ | Clir P K Cuthbert * | Clir R Rowe
* | Clir R J Foss (Vice Chairman) * | Clir R C Steer (Chairman)
* | Clir P W Hitchins (pm only) * | Clir RJ Vint
Other Members also in attendance:
Clirs Baldry, Birch, Hicks, Tucker and Wright
Officers in attendance and participating:
ltem No: Application No: Officers:
All agenda Planning Senior Specialist, Planning
items Specialists, Deputy Monitoring Officer,

Affordable Housing Specialist; and
Senior Specialist — Democratic Services

1593/17/VAR Head of Paid Service and Senior
Specialist — Place and Strategy

DM.13/17  MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 5 July 2017 were
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

DM.14/17  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of
business to be considered and the following were made:

Clir D Brown declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in application
number 1785/17/HHO ‘Installation of a new dormer and rooflights with
existing loft conversion — 77 Mewstone Avenue, Wembury’ by virtue of the
applicants being his parents and left the meeting during consideration of
this item;

Clir D Brown declared a personal interest in application number
1593/17/VAR ‘Section 73 application to remove/vary conditions relating to
the Sherford New Community — Land South/South West of A38, Deep Lane
and East of Haye Road, Elburton, Plymouth’ by virtue of being a local Ward
Member, who also served on the Local Liaison Committee, and remained in
the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon;

Page 1



DM.15/17

Dev Management 2.08.17

Clir R J Vint declared a personal interest in application number
2021/17/PAT ‘Prior notification of proposed developments by
telecommunications code system operators for 17.5m shrouded monopole,
2 no. microwave dishes and 2 no. equipment cabinets — Highways land off
Babbage Road, Totnes’ by virtue of being an acquaintance of the registered
objector for this application and remained in the meeting and took part in
the debate and vote thereon; and

Clir D Brown declared a personal interest in the following planning
applications that were sited within the South Devon AONB by virtue of
being a Member of the South Devon AONB Partnership Committee and
remained in the meeting and took part in the debate and vote thereon:

- 1554/17/0PA: Application for approval of Outline Planning Permission
(all matters reserved except for access) for the development of 13 no.
age restricted dwellings and 6 no. affordable dwellings to be accessed
via School Road, Stoke Fleming — Land off School Road, Stoke Fleming
TQ6 OPR;

- 25/1720/15/0: Outline application with some matters reserved for
erection of 14 no. dwellings, provision of community car park, allotment
gardens, access and associated works — Progressed Development Site
at SX 612 502, land north of Church Hill, Holbeton;

- 25/1721/15/0: Outline application with some matters reserved for
erection of 11 no. dwellings, village hall with car park, access and
associated works — Progressed Development Site East of Vicarage Hill
at SX 614 503, Vicarage Hill, Holbeton; and

- 3139/16/0OPA: Outline planning application for the erection of 12
dwellings to include 6 affordable units for the over 55s — Land adjacent
to Parsonage Farm, Parsonage Road, Newton Ferrers.

Clir R J Foss declared a personal interest in application numbers
25/1720/15/0: Outline application with some matters reserved for erection
of 14 no. dwellings, provision of community car park, allotment gardens,
access and associated works — Progressed Development Site at SX 612
502, land north of Church Hill, Holbeton and 25/1721/15/0: Outline
application with some matters reserved for erection of 11 no. dwellings,
village hall with car park, access and associated works — Progressed
Development Site East of Vicarage Hill at SX 614 503, Vicarage Hill,
Holbeton by virtue of his landlord employing the same agent as the
applicant and remained in the meeting during the debate and vote on these
applications.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

The Chairman announced that a list of members of the public and town and
parish council representatives, who had registered their wish to speak at
the meeting, had been circulated.

Page 2



Dev Management 2.08.17

DM.16/17  PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered the details of the planning applications prepared
by the Planning Case Officers as presented in the agenda papers, and
considered also the comments of Town and Parish Councils together with
other representations received, which were listed within the presented
agenda reports, and RESOLVED that:

1554/17/0OPA Land off School Road, Stoke Fleming
Parish: Stoke Fleming

Application for approval of Outline Planning Permission (all matters
reserved except for access) for the development of 13 no. age
restricted dwellings and 6 no. affordable dwellings to be accessed via
School Road, Stoke Fleming

Case Officer Update: - contrary to the report, the AONB team had
not made any comments on this application;

- The first condition of the Section 106 should
read: ‘6 Affordable housing units — 4
Affordable Rent and 2 Intermediate’;

- 3 additional letters of support and 1
additional letter of objection — no new issues
raised; and

- South West Water had been contacted in
response to issues raised during the Site
Inspection and reiterated that they had no
objections to this application.

Speakers included: Objector — Mrs Gail Dorrington; Supporter — Mrs
Judith Newman Andrew Rowe; Stoke Fleming
Parish Council — ClIr Lady Mary Newman; and
local ward Member — ClIr Hicks

Recommendation: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application

In discussion on the planning merits of this application, some Members
expressed the following concerns:

- There was felt to be no justification for the two access points into the
development site that would, in effect, segregate the open market
housing from the affordable housing;

Page 3



Dev Management 2.08.17

- The proposals would have an adverse effect on the street scene and the
AONB;

- Regardless of the views of the County Highways Authority, road safety
was a cause for concern;

- There was felt to be no demonstrable housing need evidence for the
development of such additional age restricted housing;

- The proposals were contradictory to the content of the emerging local
Neighbourhood Plan.

Such were the concerns over the access points, that it was PROPOSED
and SECONDED that:

‘The application be deferred to ask the developer to consider addressing
the on-site access concerns.’

When put to the vote, it was (by virtue of a Chairman’s Casting Vote)
declared LOST.

It was then (by virtue of a Chairman’s Casting Vote) declared CARRIED
that:

Committee Decision: Delegate to COP lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal Agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed
by the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP to refuse to application in the absence of an
agreed S106 Agreement.

The Section 106 would secure the following:

- 6 Affordable housing units — 4 Affordable Rent and 2 Intermediate;

- A commitment to the provision of 4 no. 2-bed affordable homes and
2 no. 3 bed affordable homes;

- Atrigger to agree the precise bedroom mix between tenures prior to
submission of the Reserved Matters Approval application;

- The AH Units will be built to the HCA Design and Quality
Standards;

- Sport and recreation — for the 6 affordable units - £595 per occupier
for pitches and £380 for play; for the 13 age restricted units - £595
per occupier toward playing pitches — contributions will be towards
provision of a new play area off School Road and improvement to
the Bird Walk;

- Landscape and Ecology Management Plan and SUDs outside of
private curtilages- implementation and on on-going management;
and

- Age Restriction — over 55, on the open market units.

Page 4



Dev Management 2.08.17

Conditions:

Standard time limit;

Reserved Matters;

Accord with plans;

External materials;

Boundary treatments;

Drainage details: percolation tests;

Groundwater monitoring;

Surface water drainage management system permanent;
Surface water drainage management system construction;
Tree and hedgerow protection;

Ecology Report mitigation compliance;

No street lighting;

Completion of footpaths and visibility splays;

Construction Management Plan;

Estate roads and other details required;

Off-site highway works;

Unsuspected contamination;

Removal of permitted development rights;

Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement; and
Landscape and Ecology Management Plan to be agreed.

1593/17/VAR Sherford New Community — Land South/South
West of A38, Deep Lane and East of Hay Road,
Elburton

Parish: Brixton

S73 application to remove/vary conditions 2, 5, 6, 16, 20 and 21 of PCC
outline planning permissions ref, 16/00247/OUT and conditions 3, 6,
12, 14, 17, 26 and 57 of SHDC outline planning permission ref.
0484/16/VAR relating to the ‘Sherford New Community’, including
amendments to documents as listed within the approved drawings
conditions in respect of the Town code and Sustainability chapters

Case Officer Update: -  Plymouth City Council Development
Management Committee had voted to refuse its
equivalent planning application and an amended
recommendation was therefore necessary;

- The draft Code had been further revised to
replace reference to the word ‘should’ to imply
that the requirements were more mandatory.

Speakers included: Objector — Mr Ben Bolgar; Supporter — Mr John
Brindley; local ward Member — Clir Brown

Page 5



Dev Management 2.08.17

Recommendation: To delegate authority to the COP Lead
Development Management, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Development Management Committee, to grant conditional approval
subject to a satisfactory Section 106 which substitutes the obligations in
Schedule 10 with the revised Town Code and the obligation to pay
contributions to enable Independent Review of the Neighbourhood Design
Codes and retain all other obligations within the principal deed, and to:

1. Agree to minor alterations and corrections of typological errors within the
submitted documents;

2. Make minor alterations to the planning conditions; and

3. Refuse if s106 is not signed within six months.

In the ensuing debate, a Member asked that the comments of the supporter
(regarding his assurances that the quality of the development would not be
diminished through these proposals) be formally recorded.

Committee Decision: To delegate authority to the COP Lead
Development Management, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Development Management Committee, to grant conditional approval
subject to a satisfactory Section 106 which substitutes the obligations in
Schedule 10 with the revised Town Code and the obligation to pay
contributions to enable Independent Review of the Neighbourhood Design
Codes and retain all other obligations within the principal deed, and to:

1. Agree to minor alterations and corrections of typological errors within
the submitted documents;

2. Make minor alterations to the planning conditions; and

3. Refuse if s106 is not signed within six months.

Conditions

1. Original outline conditions imposed on 0484/16/VAR reiterated,
plus amendments to reflect revised documents (as set out in the
published agenda report);

Informatives:

Documents and Plans (amended to reflect revised documents);
DRN Plans (amended to reflect revised documents);

S106;

“Neighbourhoods”; and

Pro-active.

abhwn =

S106 Obligation:
1. Supplementary; and
2. Design review contribution.

25/1720/15/0 Proposed Development Site at SX 612 502, Land
North of Church Hill, Holbeton

Parish: Holbeton

Page 6



Dev Management 2.08.17

Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of 14no.
dwellings, provision of community car park, allotment gardens,
access and associated works

Case Officer Update: - minor revisions to the Section 106 to

include reference to SUDS and an
amendment to the play area requirement to
read: ‘£380 per occupier for improvements to
Holbeton play area and provision of a skate
facility on the playing field or other play facilities
to be agreed by the local Parish Council’,

- One further letter of representation had been
received.

Speakers included: Objector — Mr Martin Battershill; Supporter — Mr
Anthony Mildmay-White; Holbeton Parish
Council — ClIr Peter Hearn; and local ward
Member — Clir Baldry

Recommendation: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application.

Committee Decision: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application.

The Section 106 should secure the following:

35% on site provision of affordable housing;

£38.306 towards infrastructure at lvybridge Community College
£13,851 toward school transport;

Ongoing management and maintenance of open space, landscape,
SUDS, and wildlife features in accordance with LEMP in perpetuity;
Provision of footpath link to Church Hill;

o £380 per occupier for improvements to Holbeton play area and
provision of a skate facility on the playing field or other play
facilities to be agreed by the local Parish Council;

Page 7



Dev Management 2.08.17

£595 per occupier for improvements to the Holbeton playing field
to allow increased use for sports;

Public access and on-going management of the allotment area in
perpetuity; and

Public access, use in perpetuity and ongoing maintenance and
management of the car park.

Conditions

Standard outline time conditions (3 years + 2 years);

Accords with plans;

Access and visibility splays to be constructed and laid out and
maintained for that purpose, in accordance with approved plan
and details;

Pre-commencement — Construction Environmental Management
Plan;

Pre-commencement — details of road construction to be agreed;
Pre-commencement — suitable highway drainage scheme to be
agreed and then implemented;

Pre-commencement — ground investigation to be undertaken to
prove that the 1:2:5 batter slopes adj. the car park are safe;
Pre-commencement — Programme of percolation test to be
agreed and undertaken in consultation with LLFA;
Pre-commencement — detailed design of permanent surface water
drainage management system to the agreed with LLFA;
Pre-commencement — Details of adoption and maintenance
arrangements for proposed surface water drainage management
system to be agreed with LLFA;

Pre-commencement — detailed design of surface water
management during construction to be agreed with LLFA;
Pre-commencement - LEMP to be agreed;

Details of allotments to be agreed and implemented;
Unsuspected contamination;

Details of footpath to be agreed and implemented;
Pre-commencement — Arboricultural Impact Assessment to be
submitted, agreed and implemented;

Pre-commencement — Arboricultural Method Statement to be
submitted, agreed and implemented;

Pre-commencement — Tree protection plan to be submitted,
agreed and implemented,;

Removal of PD — roof alterations, means of enclosure,
hardstandings and boundary treatments;

Garages and parking areas to be provided in accordance with
approved details prior to occupation;

Vehicular access and road to be provided in accordance with
phasing plan to be agreed,;

No external lighting in public areas other than that agreed in
lighting strategy;

Development in accordance with Ecology Report;

Materials to be agreed; and

Page 8



Dev Management 2.08.17

o Boundary treatments.

25/1721/15/0 Proposed Development Site East of Vicarage Hill at
S$X 614 503, Vicarage Hill, Holbeton

Parish: Holbeton

READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plans Received) Outline application
with some matters reserved for erection of 11no. dwellings, village
hall with car park, access and associated works

Case Officer Update: - an amendment to the Section 106 to read:
‘£380 per occupier for improvements to
Holbeton play area and provision of a skate
facility on the playing field or other play
facilities to be agreed by the local Parish
Council;

- County Highways Officers were now
satisfied and raising no objections to this
application;

- Inclusion of an additional section 106
requirement related to woodland planting.

Speakers included: Objector — Ms Sandi Marshall; Supporter — Mr
Anthony Mildmay-White; Holbeton Parish
Council — ClIr Mr Peter Hearn; and local ward
Member — Clir Baldry

Recommendation: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application

In discussion, it was apparent that some Members were not in agreement
with the officer recommendation with the objections that had been raised by
the AONB team and an ecological survey having concluded that the site
was an incredibly rich bio-diverse area being identified as particular causes
for concern. In addition, the levels of local objections raised were felt to be
considerable.

Whilst accepting that this was a finely balanced application, other Members
stated that the Council’s Landscape Specialist had raised no objections to
the application and they felt it was important (in order to ensure the long-
term sustainability of villages such as Holbeton) that there was some
growth in footfall.

Page 9



Dev Management 2.08.17

At the conclusion of the debate, a proposal to refuse this application was
PROPOSED and SECONDED and when put to the vote was declared
LOST.

It was then:

Committee Decision: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application

The Section 106 should secure the following:

e 35% affordable housing to be provided at the Church Hill site with
appropriate phasing and commencement restrictions;

¢ Ongoing management and maintenance of landscape, wildlife
features and any Suds features within public areas, in accordance
with the LEMP in perpetuity;

e Footpath link from village hall/site into playing field to be provided
and maintained in perpetuity;

¢ Village hall site to be provided and managed as public amenity land
until hall is constructed;

e The provision of the village hall site on a long term lease to be
offered to the Parish Council;

e £380 per occupier for improvements to Holbeton play area and

provision of a skate park or other play facilities to be agreed by the

local Parish Council;

£596 per occupier for improvements to the Holbeton playing field;

£9424 towards school transport;

£30,097 towards school infrastructure; and

Woodland Planting — 0.2 hectares of native woodland planting (on

a site to be agreed with the local planning authority) to be retained

and managed in perpetuity in accordance with an updated

Conservation Action Statement (including a Woodland

Management Plan).

Conditions

Standard time outline time conditions;

Submission of reserved matters;

Accords with plans;

Materials to be agreed;

Boundary treatments to be agreed,;

Development to take place in accordance with ecology report;

Page 10



Dev Management 2.08.17

o Full details of pedestrian access to Vicarage Hill to be agreed as a
reserved matter;

o Pre-commencement - Percolation testing to be carried out;

o Pre-commencement — Detailed design of permanent surface
water drainage to be agreed;

o Pre-commencement - Detailed design of construction phase
drainage to be agreed;

o Pre-commencement — full details of the adoption and
maintenance arrangements for the surface water management to
be agreed;

o Pre-commencement — CEMP to be agreed including details of all
construction mitigation measures;

o Pre-commencement — LEMP to be agreed;

o Pre-commencement — Copy of licence (Badgers) from Natural
England authorising works to be submitted or a written statement
from NE of suitably qualified ecologist to effect that they do not
consider the works will require a licence;

o Unsuspected contamination of land;

o Pre-commencement — Arboricultural Impact Assessment to be
submitted, agreed and implemented;

o Pre-commencement — Arboricultural Method Statement to be
submitted, agreed and implemented;

o Pre-commencement — Tree protection plan to be submitted,
agreed and implemented;

o Removal of PD — roof alterations and extensions, means of
enclosure, hardstandings;

o Garages and parking areas to be provided in accordance with
approved details prior to occupation;

o Interim landscaping proposal for village hall site to be submitted to
be agreed and implemented;

o Vehicular access and road, visibility splays and footways to be
provided prior to occupation of any dwelling;

o No external lighting in public areas other than that agreed in
lighting strategy;

. Detailed construction of roads, verges, footways etc;

o Highway drainage to be agreed; and

o Village hall — hours of use between 8am and 10pm Mon to Thurs
and 8am to 11pm Fri to Sun only.

2021/17/PAT Highways Land off Babbage Road, Totnes
Parish: Totnes
Prior notification of proposed development by telecommunications

code system operators for 17.5m shrouded monopole, 2no.
Microwave dishes and 2no. Equipment cabinets

Page 11



Dev Management 2.08.17

Case Officer Update: A number of additional objection letters received
— no new issues raised and a couple of letters
of support received

Speakers included: Objector — Ms Bernadette Checkley; and local
ward Members — Clirs Birch and Vint

Recommendation: Prior Approval NOT Required

In discussion, Members were of the view that alternative (and potentially
more appropriate) sites had not been suitably considered and the lack of
meaningful consultation by the applicants was felt to be regrettable. In also
highlighting the likely prominence of the mast from Borough Park, a number
of Members stated that they were unable to support the officer
recommendation whereby prior approval was not required for this
application.

Committee Decision: That prior approval IS required.

3139/16/0PA Land adjacent to Parsonage Farm, Parsonage
Road, Newton Fetters

Parish: Newton and Noss

Outline planning application for the erection of 12 dwellings to include
6 affordable dwellings with tenure restricted to over 55 year olds

Case Officer Update: - apologies for the confusion over the site
location during the recent Committee Site
Inspection. The proposal had been assessed
thoroughly by previous case officers.

Speakers included: Supporter — Mr Andrew Birkett; Newton and
Noss Parish Council — Clir Alan Cooper; and
local ward Member — CliIr Baldry

Recommendation: Delegate to COP Lead Development
Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application

Committee Decision: Delegate to COP Lead Development

Management, in conjunction with Chairman to conditionally grant planning
permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

Page 12



Dev Management 2.08.17

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal agreement remains
unsigned six months after this resolution, that the application is reviewed by
the COP Lead Development Management, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the COP Lead to refuse the application

0266/16/FUL 5 Christina Parade, Totnes
Parish: Totnes

Erection of 3 bed terrace house with garden and relocation of garages

Case Officer Update: APPLICATION WITHDRAWN FROM THIS
MEETING AGENDA
1801/17/FUL Fulling Mill, Woodland Road, Harbertonford

Parish: Harberton
Change of use from B1(c) light industry to C3 Dwelling house

Case Officer Update: - Additional conditions relating to ground
contamination and an Ecology report; and
- Clarification that the application site was
partially within Site Zone 2 — no flood
concerns envisaged.

Speakers included: None

Recommendation: Conditional Approval
Committee Decision: Conditional Approval
Conditions

1. Time limit;

2. Approved plans;

3. Samples of materials;

4. Details of rooflights;

5.  Details of flue;

6. Implementation of approved remediation scheme;
7. Unsuspected contamination; and

8. Compliance with recommendations of ecology report.

1785/17/HHO 77 Mewstone Avenue, Wembury
Parish: Wembury

Householder application for installation of a new dormer and
rooflights within existing loft conversion

Page 13



DM.17/17

DM.18/17

Dev Management 2.08.17

Case Officer Update: None

Speakers included: None
Recommendation: Conditional Approval
Committee Decision: Conditional Approval
Conditions

1. Standard time limit;
2. Adherence to plans; and
3. Materials to match

PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE

Members noted the list of appeals as outlined in the presented agenda
report and felt the Green House, Newton Ferrers appeal decision was
particularly interesting.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Planning Senior Specialist introduced the latest set of performance
indicators related to the Development Management service.

In making reference to the recent Planning Enforcement Service Review by

the Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Minute O&S.31/17 refers), some
Members expressed their disappointment at the upward trend in

enforcement cases. Some Members reiterated the concerns expressed by

the Panel that resources were currently not sufficient to address the case
backlog.

It was then:
RESOLVED

That the latest set of performance indicators be noted.

(Meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 5.30 pm)

Chairman

Page 14



Dev Management 2.08.17

Voting Analysis for Planning Applications — DM Committee 2 August 2017

Application No: Site Address Vote Councillors who | Councillors who Voted Councillors who Absent
Voted Yes No Voted Abstain
Clirs Brown, Holway, | Clirs Bramble, Brazil, Clirs Cuthbert,
Land off Sehool Road. Stok Deferral to ask the Rowe and Vint (4) Foss and Steer (4) Hit(cj:hlins, Hoc(jf)son
and off School Road, Stoke . and Pearce
, ’ Developer to consider .
1554/17/0PA Fleming addressing the on-site (NB. t_he(?nalrc?"lan .
ACCESS CONCEnS exercised his discretion
' to vote ‘no’ on this
motion)
Clirs Bramble, Foss, Clirs Brazil, Brown, Clirs Cuthbert,
o Land off School Road, Stoke Conditional Approval Rowe and Steer (4) Holway and Vint (4) Hitchins, Hodgson
154/17/0OPA Fleming subject to completion of a . and Pearce (4)
Q (NB. the Chairman
S106 Agreement ) )
oD exercised his
= discretion to vote ‘yes’
o on this motion)
, Conditional Approval, i ,
Sherford New Community, Land : : Clirs Bramble, Brown, | CliIr Vint (1) Clir Brazil (1) Clirs Cuthbert,
1 17)VAR subject to completion of .
S93/M7IV. south/south west of A38, Deep a satisfactory Section Foss, Holway, Rowe Hitchins, Hodgson
Lane and East of Haye Road, and Steer (6) and Pearce (4)
Elburton 106 Agreement
Proposed Development site at SX | Conditional Approval, Clirs Bramble, Brazil,
25/1720/15/0 612 502, Land north of Church subject to completion of a | Brown, Foss, Hitchins, Clir Vint (1) Clirs Cuthbert,

Hill, Holbeton

satisfactory S106
Agreement

Holway, Rowe and
Steer (8)

Hodgson and
Pearce (3)




Dev Management 2.08.17

Proposed Development site East of

CliIrs Brazil, Brown and

Clirs Bramble, Foss,

Clir Hitchins (1)

Clirs Cuthbert,

25/1721/15/0 Vicarage Hill at SX 614 503, Refusal Vint (3) Holway, Rowe and Hodgson and
Vicarage Hill, Holbeton Steer (5) Pearce (3)
Proposed Development site East of | Conditional Approval, Clirs Bramble, Foss, Clirs Brazil, Brown and | CliIr Hitchins (1) Clirs Cuthbert,
25/1721/15/0 Vicarage Hill at SX 614 503, subject to completion of a | Holway, Rowe and Vint (3) Hodgson and
Vicarage Hill, Holbeton satisfactory S106 Steer (5) Pearce (3)
Agreement
Highways land off Babbage Road, Clirs Bramble, Brazil, Clirs Cuthbert,
Totnes . . . Brown, Foss, Hitchins, Hodgson and
2021/17/PAT Prior Approval is Required Holway, Rowe, Steer Pearce (3)
and Vint (9)
U
Q
Q Land adjacent to Parsonage Farm, | Conditional Approval, Clirs Bramble, Brown, Clir Brazil (1) Clirs Cuthbert,
5_?@9/16/OPA Parsonage Road, Newton Ferrers | subject to completion of a | Foss, Holway, Rowe, Hitchins, Hodgson
o) S106 Agreement Steer and Vint (7) and Pearce (4)
Fulling Mill, Woodland Road, Clirs Bramble, Brazil, Clirs Cuthbert,
Harbertonford " Brown, Foss, Holway, Hitchins, Hodgson
1801/17/FUL Conditional Approval Rowe, Steer and Vint and Pearce (4)
(8)
77 Mewstone Avenue, Wembury Clirs Bramble, Brazil, Clirs Cuthbert,
1785/17/HHO Conditional Approval Brown, Foss, Holway, Hitchins, Hodgson

Rowe, Steer and Vint

(8)

and Pearce (4)




Agenda ltem 6a

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT

Case Officer: Wendy Ormsby  Parish: Malborough Ward: Salcombe and Thurlestone

Application No: 0549/17/OPA

Agent/Applicant: Applicant:

Mr Alex Graves Maze Consulting
1st Floor 3 Silverdown Office Park C/O Agent

Fair Oak Close

Clyst Honiton, Exeter

EX5 2UX

Site Address: Development site at SX 710 394, Adjacent To Malborough Park,
Malborough

Development: Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of circa
50n0. dwellings and means of access (all other matters reserved)

Reason item is being put before Committee: This is major development in the AONB and
S0 is a decision that should not be taken lightly. This scheme has come forward through full
public engagement and neighbourhood plan process; as such it is appropriate that it is
determined in a public forum.

—— 4
Mapping data () Ordnance Survey — G

L - I et =N
AL
£ .575531 a E?/V\

[/
A
N
AY

g %ﬁaﬁz E \ 3 V
.\ﬁ"ﬁ\’i Q \% ﬁ:’l‘llll i /
[ SPLSHK ST,
(ST Nt ar=
, : N | |
A F (& Rl s 222
A S SN e [l
S AN /B SRSl e
N E O
SRR SN BTSN
§ ' ‘Q 5 ii.@}\ %;f\’
) \&
f
0 H

Page 17



Recommendation: Delegate to CoP Lead Development Management, in conjunction with
Chairman to conditionally grant planning permission, subject to a Section 106 legal agreement.

However, in the event that the Section 106 legal Agreement remains unsigned six months after
this resolution, that the application is reviewed by the COP Lead Development Management,
in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, and if no progress is being made delegated
authority is given to the CoP to refuse to application in the absence of an agreed S106
Agreement.

The Section 106 should secure the following:

30% on-site affordable housing or 16 dwellings whichever is the greater; of which the
mix will be either 50/50 affordable rent to shared ownership or
o 9 social rent
o 5 affordable rent
o 6 intermediate (i.e., market discount at 75%)
To be allocated in accordance with local allocations policy giving Band A-E preference
to Parish applicants.
£164,407 towards secondary school infrastructure
£23,332 towards secondary school transport
£12,500 towards early years education
£380 per resident towards improvements to the adjacent existing play area.
£595 per resident towards improvements to Malborough Playing Fields.
Access to and ongoing management and maintenance of Public Open Space and SUDs
in perpetuity.
Implementation of LEMP in perpetuity
£5000 for speed limit TRO
£300 per dwelling for travel plan vouchers

Conditions

» Std time outline time conditions

» Submission of reserved matters

» Accords with plans

* Materials to be agreed

* Boundary treatments to be agreed

« CEMP

* Roads to be constructed in accordance with details to be agreed

» Development in accordance with phasing programme to be agreed

« Off-site highway works to be completed prior to occupation of any dwellings

* No other development to commence until access road and footway on the public
highway has been provided to base course level and site compound and car park
constructed.

» Visibility splays to be provided

» Unsuspected contamination

* No development until a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written
scheme of investigation has been submitted and agreed. Development to take place in
accordance with the agreed details.

* No development until a programme of percolation tests has been carried out and
approved.

Page 18



No development until detailed design of proposed permanent surface water drainage
management system is submitted and approved in writing.

No development until detailed design of construction phase drainage scheme is
submitted and agreed

No development until details of adoption and maintenance arrangements for permanent
surface water drainage scheme has been submitted and approved
Pre-commencement — LEMP

Pre-commencement - tree/hedgerow protection during construction

Retention of all hedgerows except where their removal is permitted though this or
subsequent planning consents

Garages and parking areas to be provided in accordance with approved details prior to
occupation and retained in perpetuity.

Removal of PD — roof extensions, means of enclosure, hardstandings

Lighting strategy to be submitted and agreed

No external lighting in public areas other than that agreed in lighting strategy
Arboricultural Impact assessment including details of hedgerow works to facilitate new
access to be submitted and agreed

Development in accordance with EclA

Recommended Non-Standard Informatives:

1. This scheme has been supported because it has been demonstrated through the illustrative
plans that an appropriate density of development and provision of green space can be achieved
on the site. The Council wish to see a similar quantum of green space to that shown on the
illustrative plans included in any Reserved Matters application.

2. Any reserved matter(s) application should provide a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes
to help support the creation of a mixed, balanced and inclusive community, which also
considers local need.

Key issues for consideration:

Does the scheme represent sustainable development?

The development proposes major development in the AONB, it is therefore relevant to
consider the landscape impacts of the development and to consider the development
against the tests set out in paragraph 116 of the NPPF, specifically the need for the
development, the impact upon the local economy, the cost and scope for developing
elsewhere and the detrimental effect on the environment and the landscape and the
extent to which that could be mitigated.

Other key issues are highway impacts, flood risk and impact on the amenity of existing
neighbours.

Financial Implications (Potential New Homes Bonus for major applications):

It is estimated that this development has the potential to attract New Homes Bonus of
approximately £59,350 per annum.

Page 19



The Government is implementing reforms to the New Homes Bonus scheme and the length
of NHB payments will be reduced from 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18 and 4 years from 2018-
19 onwards.

Members are advised that this is provided on an information basis only and is not a material
planning consideration in the determination of this application.

Site Description:

The site of 2.17 hectares is part of a larger agricultural field located on the southern edge of
the village of Malborough. The field is currently in arable use.

The northern boundary adjoins residential properties. There is no boundary demarcation on
the southern site boundary as currently it is part of a larger field. To the south east the site
adjoins a rural road running from Collaton Road to Portlemore Barton. It is proposed to take
access into the site from this road

There is an existing public right of way access to the south and west which follows the perimeter
of the larger field area to the south. This PRoW connects the existing lane to Shute Park and
from there links into the village.

The site is on a south facing slope rising towards the settlement to the north. It is exposed in
the landscape and offers wide views of the surrounding countryside

The centre of the village lies to north and walking distances from the site to facilities are as
follows (approximate):

» Football Ground: 300m

» Play Area — adjacent

» Village Hall: 335m

» Co-op shop (garage): 440m
* Primary school: 550m

» Post office: 620m

The adjoining residential development to the north is relatively modern, it is mainly two story
terraced or semi-detached houses of styles typical of the late 1960’s/1970’s.

The site lies within the South Devon Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, the Heritage Coast
and Undeveloped Coast.

The Proposal:

This application seeks outline planning permission for circa 50 dwellings. All matters are
reserved except for access. Two illustrative layouts have been provided to indicate how 50
dwellings could be provided on the site. The layouts show a relatively low density development
of approx. 23 dwellings per hectare including 0.4ha of informal public open space.

Both layouts include a central area of open space which would link into the existing playground

adjacent and an area of open space is proposed south of the main site access, although this
is principally a drainage attenuation area.

Page 20



It is proposed that housing in the southern area of the site would be lower (1 or 1.5 stories) to
minimise landscape impact. A new Devon Hedgebank is shown on the southern boundary.

House size/bedroom numbers would not be agreed at this stage for the open market dwellings;
the illustrative proposals show a mix of 1 or 2 bed apartments and 2, 3 and 4 bed
houses/bungalows.

Vehicular access is proposed from the rural lane running along the south east boundary. The
first illustrative layout also indicates pedestrian access from the north-west corner of the site
into Portlemore Close and from the centre of the site into Sparrow Park via an existing access
from the existing play park, or directly into Malborough Park onto Collaton Road.

The second illustrative layout does not include the proposed access into Portlemore Close and
shows the access road running further to the north within the site.

Drainage details have been submitted to demonstrate that a SUDs complaint surface water
drainage management scheme is possible on the site. This has included two attenuation based
options on land outside of the site on land within the applicant’s control, on farmland south of
the access lane.
Consultations:
» County Highways Authority ~ No objection subject to conditions and S106 to provide:
o £5000 for speed limit TRO
o £300 per dwelling for travel plan vouchers
« Environmental Health Section: No objection subject to conditions
» DCC Archaeology: No objections subject to pre-commencement conditions
 DCC Flood Risk: No in-principle objection subject to conditions
* AONB Unit: No comments received
» SHDC landscape: Objection
» Affordable Housing: Support
« SWW: No objection
» SHDC Ecology: No objection: The EcIA is thorough and reflects the potential to mitigate
impacts on protected species and deliver meaningful enhancements. The proposal is in
keeping with national and local policy. The s106 should secure access to and ongoing
management and maintenance of Public Open Space in perpetuity. A LEMP will be required
prior to commencement.
» Open Space Sport and Recreation: The adjacent play area is SHDC owned, and scored

1 out of 5 in terms of quality on a recent play audit undertaken to support the JLP —
accordingly this is a site noted as needing investment to meet the needs of existing and

Page 21



future residents. This facility is the play and recreation site that would be used extensively
by the residents of the 50 proposed dwellings and an offsite sum of £380 per resident
using the OSSR SPD resident per dwelling table towards this play area would be
necessary to mitigate the impact of these new resident.

The Playing Pitch Strategy notes that the Malborough Playing Fields are very well used,
but require improvements, and if has been flagged up in the annual review that
improvements are required to drainage, as the current condition is preventing winter use. |
suggest a commuted sum of £595 per resident is sought towards ‘improvements to
Malborough Playing Fields’ is sought, in accordance with tables in SHDC OSSR SPD (to
be calculated when dwelling size/mix is know

« DCC Education: No objection subject to financial contributions as follows:

o £164,407 towards secondary school infrastructure
o £23,332 towards secondary school transport
o £12,500 towards early years education

» Natural England: No objection subject to appropriate mitigation being secured which should
include:

Green Infrastructure should take up a significant part of the site given its prominent and
edge of village location. This should be provided through a Landscape and Ecological
Management Plan (LEMP).

In order to ensure that the hedgerow on the southern boundary is successful in its aim of
mitigating the visual impact of the development and increasing the site’s biodiversity
interest, it should be in the public realm and not part of private gardens. This is not clear
from the LVIA or the other plans submitted.

They advise that an appropriate planning condition or obligation is attached to
any planning permission to secure these measures

» Police AOL: Consideration of impact of new pedestrian links to be considered in terms of
perception of crime; measures to be put in place to prevent parking on the open space;
open space should be overlooked and not positioned to the side of dwellings (plot 2)

» Town/Parish Council:

Malborough Parish Council Response to Planning Application 0549/17/OPA. (first

response and relating to lllustrative layout 1)

Outline application with some matters reserved for erection of circa 50 no dwellings and
means of access (all other matters reserved).

This application is only regarding the outline permission for the site and the access to it, but

in considering this the Parish Council must take into account the finished development to
assess it properly.

Page 22



The development has to fit with the village and the detail supplied by the applicant with this
application needs to be taken into account. The application also needs to be appraised taking
into account the Emerging Neighbourhood Plan for Malborough which has been through the
REG 14 consultation and has the aim of 50% affordable housing in developments.

Malborough Parish Council is very concerned about this application being only for access
and outline. The agents for the Owners have been in discussions with the Neighbourhood
Plan Group, the parish council and SHDC and the plans were adapted as a result. The
details furnished with the application are those that were put to the Village through the
consultation for the emerging Neighbourhood Plan and which the applicant took part in. The
Parish Council needs to be sure that what is proposed in the detail is what is actually built
and not a different layout and increased numbers of dwellings.

Malborough Parish Council concerns:

» The outline application for development on the site is in line with the draft Neighbourhood
Plan except for the % of affordable homes. The sites put forward to the Council went to
public consultation and this site was favoured by more people than the other sites. But to
truly represent the Parish, the Council needs to be confident that the completed
development will be as set out in the details which accompany this application.

» These have been the subject of discussions with the representatives of the landowners
and were available to the parishioners as set out in the Statement of Community
Involvement attached to this application.

« The Council agrees with the design recommendations as set out in the Design and
Access statement with this application.

* The phrase ‘circa 50 houses’ concerns the Council. There is no requirement for more
than 50 houses in the Emerging Neighbourhood Plan, the affordable houses proposed
would satisfy the Village demand as established by the latest Housing Need Survey.

» The number of houses proposed is directly related to the number of affordable houses
required in the village as a result of the latest Housing Survey. Therefore the proposed
affordable house numbers should be for the residents of Malborough and their
dependants. If open to anyone on the SHDC list, it calls into question using the
information as a justification of the size of the development. The Parish Council would like
to see the Affordable portion be one third, houses for Social rent, one third affordable rent
and one third low priced in perpetuity. This would be in line with the Joint Local Plan and
cater for the aspirations of villagers. The emerging Neighbourhood Plan has set out a
local allocation Policy.

Local Allocation Policy:

» All new affordable housing stock will be ring-fenced for local need only - where that need
falls within the identified A-E eligibility criteria.

» The SHDC Local Allocation Policy4 should be used to help inform and assess need but

those with a local connection to Malborough, irrespective of the need band, are required
to be homed before the houses are offered up to a wider catchment ie: LOCAL applicants

Page 23



falling within Band E will be prioritised above those with a higher identified need from
outside the local area and,

If properties remain vacant after ALL local need is met (i.e. Band E inclusive) the
catchment can then be rolled/cascaded out from Malborough i.e. prioritising those that live
in villages/hamlets closest to the Parish of Malborough before opening up the new stock
to a wider catchment.

Policy note: SHDC Housing Officers have confirmed that this proviso (policy 3) can, and
will, be included in any subsequent Section 106 agreement.)

* The layout with the green space as set out fits well with the edge of settlement site.
Extra houses would upset this and be unacceptable

» The position of the access road is acceptable except for the visibility splay on the
eastern side of the road junction. At present the traffic from Cumber Close and
beyond cause difficulty at this junction, both the speed of traffic and the poor visibility.
The planned junction

* needs to improve this by increasing the splay on the east side, preferably by pulling
the hedge back. The land is in the same ownership as the proposed site.

» Devon County Council in their response mention the need for at least a 43mtrs splay
as against the existing 35 mtrs. Also DCC is quoted in the Transport Statement dated
1/2/17 referring to a possible 50 mtrs splay. The Parish council would agree that the
splay should be 50 mtrs. This is in response to reports from residents using the
junction and taking into account the well documented speed of the traffic. The
pavement down the western side of the access road is welcome.

» The assumption that the Holsworthy development sited in the details as a mirror
image of this development gives us cause for concern. We consider that the number
of people commuting from the village together with tourist traffic makes this village
different and the traffic flow will be greater.

» There is a need for yellow lines to be on the western side of the junction of the access
road with Collaton Road. Cars which park there now make it difficult for the few cars
that use the lane to exit safely

» The Parish Council agrees with the view of DCC that a covert speed survey should be
carried out to get a true picture of traffic speeds on Collaton Road. The speed of
traffic on Collaton Road needs to be controlled to be able to accommodate the extra
traffic safely.

» Along Collaton Road a series of parking restrictions on either side of the road to slow
the traffic flow are needed without compromising the visibility. The junction at
Townsend Cross would also be put under increased pressure. A mini roundabout
here would help the traffic flow and provide traffic calming around the corner and for
the nearby Zebra crossing.

Page 24



The road through the development is considered to be too straight and once the
access is agreed some sort of calming will be needed to make sure that the road is
safe for pedestrians in line with the applicant’s Transport Statement.

There is dedicated parking for the dwellings. The Parish Council questions where
visitors will park and where residents with trade vehicles will also park. Parking within
the village is already a problem.

Have the developers obtained permission from SHDC in the case of access to
Malborough Park and the Guinness Trust for Sparrow Park for the very necessary
pedestrian access? The third potential entrance to the bottom of Jubilee Road is
through an area of private parking for the residents of Portlemore Close as highlighted
by submissions to this application.

These accesses need to be surfaced to allow prams and disabled buggies to use it.
The Malborough Park play area needs to be fenced and not just part of the general
green area.

A path from the south west corner of the site to Portlemore lane and onwards to
Shute would improve the connectivity to the village still further.

The neighbouring properties are very keen that the existing boundary hedges are
maintained and enhanced for the benefit both of themselves and the new houses.

The neighbour to the immediate west of the site has a borehole in his property close
to the boundary and is concerned about the effect of excavations in the site on his

supply.

Concern has been expressed by residents of Malborough Park about parking and the
effect the development could have on it. The residents there have dedicated parking
spaces not on the highway for which they pay SHDC a small rent for and are included
on their deeds.

They already have problems with people from outside the estate using the spaces.
Can SHDC help with this and ensure the new development does not cause further
problems.

Malborough Parish Council could approve this application if these concerns above are
addressed and the proposed layout is maintained. Also the % of affordable housing is
at the least achieved and preferably increased towards the 50% aim.

The Council will ask for an informative to be put on the decision for these two matters
layout and affordable housing.

Malborough Parish Comments on revised plans (illustrative layout No 2):

The number of affordable properties has reduced from 16 to 15, please provide an
explanation as to why?

Have the footpath links been approved?

Adequate parking is essential. A minimum of two parking spaces per property plus
suitable visitor parking and allowances made for commercial vehicles is required.

Page 25



» A garage does not constitute a parking space and should not be considered as one.

» The negotiations to date have been both positive and welcome. We look forward to
viewing the final plans, in the meantime, subject to acceptable clarification of the above
points, Malborough Parish Council approve in principle.

Representations:

Approximately 16 letters of objection to this proposal have been submitted which include the
following concerns:

Impact on Portlemore Close needs to be considered, the proposed pedestrian access
will cross the private car parking spaces of Portlemore Close. There is no public right
of way across this private land. There is no footway here and this could cause safety
issues.

Visitors may choose to parking in the spaces in Portlemore Close

Existing open space should not be incorporated into the site

Two storey houses could tower over adjacent properties

Exceeds identified housing needs in village which is only for 46 further dwellings
Local plan identifies a need for only 28 new homes.

Will require increased yellow lines on Collaton Road, speed limit should be reduced to
20mph

Affordable homes will not be affordable in reality.

Should build out Alston Gate Phase 2 first

Traffic congestion and adverse impact on highway/pedestrian safety

Village infrastructure and services do not have capacity for more houses

Adverse landscape impact

Revised layout shows a dwelling that is closer to Broad Views House, Portlemore
Close and which could cause subsidence and be overbearing and cause overlooking.
Visibility restricted by a high hedge

Scheme should provide smaller, cheaper units

Housing need should be met through a series of smaller sites not one large site.
Planning Statement is not comprehensive and omits important information

50 houses have already been approved in Malborough since 2010, so a further 50
cannot be judged to be ‘exceptional’

Contrary to LDF policy and JLP policy

Contrary to NPPF, in particular para 114, 115 and 116

Contrary to AONB Management Plan

No exceptional circumstances demonstrated to justify proposal

Fails to conserve and enhance AONB, Heritage Coast and Undeveloped Coast

ANALYSIS

Principle of Development/Sustainability:

The application proposes major development of circa 50 dwellings on a site in the
countryside, adjacent to but outside of the Malborough settlement/development boundary
and within the AONB. The site is not allocated in the South Hams LDF or the emerging JLP
but is the preferred housing site allocation in the emerging Malborough Neighbourhood Plan.

Page 26



The starting point for consideration is the development plan and the requirement of Section
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 that decisions made should be in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The proposed development would need to be in conformity with South Hams District Council
(SHDC) Core Strategy (December 2006), SHDC Development Policies (July 2010) to be
acceptable in principle, these documents form part of the Local Development Framework
(LDF).

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (JLP) is the emerging development
plan which when adopted will replace the current LDF. The JLP is at an advanced stage
having been submitted for examination and as such carries weight; the extent to which there
are unresolved objections to relevant policies will influence how much weight individual JLP
policies can be given.

The Malborough Neighbourhood Plan will form part of the development plan when it is
adopted. It is at Regulation 14 stage at present so carries some, but limited weight.

Paragraph 216 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that:

From the day of publication, decision-takers may also give weight to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:

» the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

» the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

» the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in
this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).

Policy CS1 of the LDF identifies settlements in which the principle of development is
acceptable and this includes Malborough. The site however lies outside of the settlement
boundary, in the countryside. Policy CS1 states that outside of identified settlements
development will be strictly controlled and only permitted where it can be delivered
sustainably and in response to a demonstrable local need.

Policy DP15 of the LDF addresses development in the countryside and states that within the
countryside, development will be permitted where it requires a countryside location and:

a. supports the essential needs of agriculture or forestry interests; or
b. meets the essential, small scale, and exceptional local development needs of
a settlement which cannot be met within development boundaries.

Policy TTV31 of the emerging JLP addresses development in the countryside and states,
inter alia, the following:

Housing and employment development adjoining or very near to an existing settlement will

only be supported where it meets the essential, small scale local development needs of the
community and provides a sustainable solution.

Page 27



Within the JLP housing sites have not been allocated for villages, this has been left for
Neighbourhood Plans to identify and bring forward. Policy TTV30 of the JLP identifies
Malborough as a village able to accommodate around 10 dwellings. This is not considered to
be a maximum figure. The Malborough Neighbourhood Plan (MNP) has identified the
application site, known as Portlemore Downs, as the preferred site for housing development;
the plan identifies a need for 16 affordable housing to meet current needs and a minimum of
46 new houses (market and affordable). These figures are extracted from the 2015 housing
needs survey and population growth projections. The plan expects the Portlemore Downs
site to provide the needed 16 affordable units imminently with work commencing before
December 2017.

Paragraph 49 of the National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) states that:

Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites.

This authority has a demonstrable 5 year housing land supply of deliverable housing sites,
the evidence base for this forms part of the emerging JLP. This evidence has yet to be
tested however and as such only limited weight can be attributed to it at present.

The presumption in favour of sustainable development is a relevant consideration for this
application and this is set out in full at Para 14 of the NPPF which states, inter alia, that:

At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running through both
plan-making and decision-taking

For decision-taking this means:

» approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without
delay; and

» where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-date,
granting permission unless:

- any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a
whole; or
- specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted.
Addressing the first bullet point it is relevant therefore to consider whether the proposals
accord with the development plan. To comply with policies CS1 and TTV31 there should be a
essential, local need for the development.

The MNP has identified a local need for a minimum of 46 new homes including 16 affordable
homes.

The Council’s adopted policies regarding location of housing development are however out of
date as they are based on housing supply up to 2016 only. Advice in para 14 states that

Page 28



where the development plan is out of date, if the development is sustainable, planning
permission should be granted unless the adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits or if specific policies in the NPPF indicate development
should be restricted.

It is relevant therefore to consider the following:

i. if the development is sustainable;
ii. arethere any adverse impacts and if so whether they would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh any benefits; and
iii.  do specific polices in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted

Sustainable Development
Location

Policy CS1 of the LDF sets out where development is acceptable in principle subject to
detailed material planning considerations. Malborough is included as one of the districts’
villages and is therefore covered by policy CS1, being a village with an appropriate level of
infrastructure and service provision to accommodate some degree of additional development.

Policy TTV30 of the emerging JLP also identifies Malborough as being a sustainable village.

Policy TTV1 identifies development appropriate for sustainable villages as being that which
will meet locally identified needs and which will sustain limited services and amenities;
settlement boundaries are identified to focus development accordingly.

Policy TTV2 states that the LPA will support development of housing in a location where it
will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities.

Policy SPT2 states that the LPA will apply principles of sustainable linked neighbourhoods
and sustainable rural communities to guide how development and growth takes place in the
Plan Area, this includes development being well served by public transport, walking and
cycling opportunities

It is clear that Malborough, as a village, is sustainable however this does not necessarily
mean it is sustainable for all types and amounts of development. In addition any sustainable
development would need to be able to properly access the village facilities to benefit from
them. In this case the application site will have direct linkages into the village; all local
facilities, including the shop, pubs, school and village hall and playing fields are within a
reasonable walking distance of the site.

Paragraph 7 of the Framework identifies three dimensions to sustainable development —
economic, social and environmental — whilst Paragraph 12 sets out twelve core planning
principles that should underpin planning decisions. These two paragraphs set the context in
which to consider sustainability. The three dimensions stated in Paragraph 7 are considered
below:

The Economic Role

Housing development is recognised as an important driver of economic growth and there

Page 29



would be economic benefits to the construction industry from the proposed development.
Once the dwellings were occupied there would be an increase in the level of disposable
income from the occupants some which would be likely to be spent in the local area and an
increase in the demand for local goods and services.

Paragraph 7 of the NPPF however does qualify this benefit; stating that LPA’s should ensure
that sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places and at the right time to
support growth and innovation; and by identifying and coordinating development
requirements, including the provision of infrastructure.

In this instance, this plan-led development is considered appropriate in terms of siting, scale
and timing so as to provide a positive economic benefit to the village without putting undue
pressure on local services and infrastructure.

The development will result in the loss of 2.17 ha of Grade 3 arable land. Having regard to
the size of the land area it is unlikely that the loss of this agricultural land will have a
significant adverse impact on the economy of Malborough.

In respect of the economic element of sustainable development the balance is considered to
be in favour of the development.

The Social Role

The principle social benefit of the proposed development would be the provision of additional
housing, including 30% (or a minimum of 16 units) of the homes being affordable. These
affordable homes will be either 50/50 affordable rented/ and shared ownership or 5 social
rent / 5 affordable rent / 6 intermediate (market discount at 75%)

The layout shows a wide range of housing size and includes some dormer bungalows, this
varied housing mix will make a positive contribution to the local housing stock

Given the NPPF priority to significantly boost the supply of housing the additional dwellings to
be provided must carry significant weight in this balance. The applicant has submitted a
viability statement with the offer of 30% affordable housing. The Affordable Housing team
have reviewed this statement and are in agreement that the level of affordable housing is
appropriate for this site. Malborough is a sustainable location benefiting from a range of
services and as such can support the delivery of more affordable housing.

In respect of the social aspect of sustainability objections have been raised including the
pressure on local services with comments about facilities being oversubscribed, added
congestion on highways that are already congested and impacts on existing residents who
live adjacent to the site.

Impact on existing Infrastructure

Consideration has been given to these concerns. Devon County Council have confirmed that
the local primary school has capacity but secondary school is at capacity; as such financial
contributions have been requested to provided additional infrastructure at the secondary
school to mitigate the additional demand. DCC do not object to the proposal.

The issue of congestion and highway safety is considered elsewhere in the report and it is
concluded that the development will not result in any significant impact upon the traffic levels

Page 30



in the area. The proposed new vehicular access is acceptable to the Highway Authority and
meets current highway standards.

The site is within walking distance of the village centre where there is access to a range of
local facilities and to bus services.

Impact upon Neighbours

This is an outline application with access only to be agreed at this stage. Two illustrative
layouts have been provided that show how 50 dwellings could be accommodated on the site.
The layouts have been prepared in consultation with the Parish Council who are broadly
supportive of the layouts. Nevertheless the layouts are purely illustrative.

The principle concern raised by neighbours relates to the pedestrian link from the north west
corner of the site to Portlemore Close, shown in the Option 1 illustrative layout. Concern is
raised that the access would open into private parking spaces and a private parking area, this
could cause conflict and highway safety issues and could encourage parking by residents or
visitors in these private parking areas.

The Option 2 layout omits this link. Whist this link is desirable to increase permeability of the
site it is not essential as another link through the play area is possible.

Concern has been raised by occupants of 2 adjoining dwellings about the scheme having an
overbearing impact, causing overlooking and loss of light. The submitted plans are
illustrative only; it is considered that an appropriate scheme could be achievable on site for
the quantum of development proposed that would have an acceptable relationship with
existing adjoining dwellings.

It would possible to develop this site as proposed without significant harm to residential
amenity.

On balance, the social impacts of the development weigh in favour of the development

The Environmental role

With respect to the environmental role of sustainable development, the elements that are
considered to be especially relevant to the proposed development are impacts on the
landscape in particular the AONB; ecology and bio-diversity; heritage assets and surface and
foul water drainage.

Landscape/AONB:

The site is in a very sensitive landscape location within the AONB, Heritage Coast and
Undeveloped Coast. This applicant has been considered by the Council’s Landscape
Specialist who has provided detailed comments as follows:

In considering this application and assessing potential impacts of the development proposal
against nationally protected landscapes, in addition to the Development Plan, the following
legislation, policies and guidance have been considered:

» Section 85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CRoW) Act;
» Section 11 of the NPPF in particular paragraphs; 109 and 114-116;

Page 31



» The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) particularly Section 8-001 to 8-
006 on Landscape; and
» The South Devon AONB Management Plan and its Annexes.

In respect of the principle policy tests in the NPPF, this application is considered to constitute
“major development” in the context of paragraph 116, due to the scale and extent of the
proposals in the context of the village of Malborough, and the significant visual built addition
that the proposals would make to the village within the AONB landscape.

In line with paragraph 116, you will therefore need to consider whether there are any
exceptional circumstances that weigh against the presumption of refusal contained within this
paragraph, and whether the proposal is in the public interest.

Landscape Character and Visual Impact

The site lies within Landscape Character Type 5A: Inland Elevated Undulating Land. The
principle characteristics of this area relate to its elevated and exposed character, with
expansive views across valleys and between ridgetops. It is generally unsettled, with
Malborough forming a notable and iconic village on a ridgeline, which is visible over
considerable distances.

The submitted LVIA includes a fair representation of landscape and visual impacts resulting
from the proposed development. The visual presence of the new development will be
principally experienced from the south and south west, with open views of the whole site
being available from the facing valley side, and the ridgeline to the south of Malborough.
Close and significant effects will also be apparent from the existing residential properties
immediately north of the site and users of the public roads at Malborough Park and the lane
to the east of the site. Although seen in the context of existing development at Malborough,
this extent of visibility, and the scale of the site is significant in the context of the AONB.

The mitigation measures set out in the LVIA include height parameters, density of built form,
green infrastructure, locations of open space and new structural landscaping. Whilst these
measures would help reduce the landscape and visual impacts of the proposals, I'm
conscious that given the outline nature of these proposals, these measures are not secured
through this application. It should therefore be noted that the impacts could be more
significant and adverse than those predicted in the LVIA, with inappropriate heights,
densities, massing, materials, and landscaping resulting in a visually prominent development
in a very exposed and sensitive location.

If approved, | would suggest that the number and heights of the proposed dwellings are
elements that should be restricted by condition to ensure that future reserved matters
applications aren’t principally at odds with the illustrative masterplan.

Protected Landscape

As noted above, there is the potential for adverse effects on views within the AONB, and
aaverse effects on the local landscape character of the designation. The South Devon
AONB Team have made more detailed comments on these likely effects and their
consistency with the AONB Management Plan policies and objectives. | would agree with
these comments, and note that in line with NPPG paragraph 8-004-20140306 the AONB
Management Plan is a material consideration.

Arboricultural Impact

Page 32



The development indicated could be achieved at this site without impacting on any significant
trees or hedgerows and | would therefore raise no objection on arboricultural grounds,
subject to securing appropriate protection for the existing vegetation during construction. The
southern boundary forms critical green infrastructure and mitigation, and should therefore be
kept in the public realm rather than being in rear gardens, to secure its retention and
management in perpetuity.

The proposed access would impact significantly on a stretch of roadside hedgerow. It is not
clear in the application if this is to be moved, or removed and reinstated. Full details of this
element, including a method statement for hedgerow works should be secured by condition if
the application were to be approved.

Policy and Recommendation

The potential for adverse effects upon the AONB landscape, Undeveloped Coast and local
visual amenity would conflict with policy tests CS9 and DP2. In particular, CS9 (2) & (3)
which seek to protect the character of the undeveloped parts of the coast; and conserve and
enhance the quality, character, diversity and local distinctiveness of the natural environment
and landscape character. DP2 contains similar tests, along with a requirement to avoid
“...unsympathetic intrusion in the wider landscape, such as detrimental impact on the
character of skylines or views from public vantage points.” The visual expansion of
development on the prominent ridgeline at Malborough would not “conserve and enhance”
the landscape as required by these policies.

Although these impacts could be moderated to an extent with good design and appropriate
mitigation, combined with this being “major development” within the AONB in NPPF (116)
terms, | would still raise an objection on landscape grounds.

Notwithstanding the policy conflicts above, | note that the Neighbourhood Plan process for
Malborough considers a number of sites around the village for development, and identifies
this as the preferred site. | would agree with the conclusions in the draft Neighbourhood Plan
that this is the preferred direction for growth in the village when considering landscape
impacts. This consideration of alternatives, and the delivery of affordable housing meeting
an identified need could be considered to count towards the “exceptional circumstances”
tests of NPPF para. 116 in the planning balance. However, proposing a greater number of
dwellings and a lower percentage of affordable housing than is anticipated in the draft
Neighbourhood Plan weakens the exceptional nature of the proposals in this regard.

Suggested Conditions

If you were minded to recommend approval of the application, | would request that hard and
soft landscape conditions are attached, to include protection for the site boundaries during
construction, and full details of the hedgerow works to the site access. In addition, controls
on the number of dwellings coming forward with any future Reserved Matters applications,
and the heights of these dwellings in line with lllustrative Masterplan would be welcome
conditions in order to secure some basic design mitigation.

Policy DP2 of the LDF states that:

Development proposals will need to demonstrate how they conserve and / or enhance the
South Hams landscape character, including coastal areas, estuaries, river valleys, undulating
uplands and other landscapes, by:

a. reflecting the needs and issues set out in identified landscape character areas;

Page 33



b. ensuring its location, siting, layout, scale and design conserves and/or enhances what is
special and locally distinctive about the landscape character (including its historic,
biodiversity and cultural character);

c. retaining, integrating and enhancing distinctive features such as trees, ancient
woodlands, field boundaries, walls, hedgerows, watercourses and river valleys;

d. avoiding unsympathetic intrusion in the wider landscape, such as detrimental impact on
the character of skylines or views from public vantage points and light pollution; and

e. respecting the unspoilt nature and tranquillity of the area.

Policy CS9 of the LDF states that in designated AONB’s their conservation and enhancement
will be given great weight and development will not be permitted which would damage their
natural beauty, character and special qualities or prejudice achievement of their designated
purpose.

Policy DEV24 of the JLP also seeks to conserve and enhance landscape, townscape and
seascape character and scenic and visual quality, avoiding significant and adverse
landscape or visual impacts.

Policy DEV25 of the JLP states that development which would have a detrimental effect on
the undeveloped and unspoilt character, appearance or tranquillity of the Undeveloped
Coast, estuaries, and the Heritage Coast will not be permitted except under exceptional
circumstances.

Policy DEV27 of the JLP states that the LPAs will protect the AONBSs, including their setting,
from potentially damaging or inappropriate development and this includes refusing
permission for major developments in or detrimentally affecting the setting of the protected
landscapes, except in exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated that they
are in the public interest.

Para 115 of the NPPF states that:

Great weight should be given to conserving landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks,
the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of
protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty.

Paragraph 116 of the NPPF states that:

Planning permission should be refused for major developments in these designated areas
except in exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated they are in the public
interest. Consideration of such applications should include an assessment of:

» the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and the
impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy;

» the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the designated area, or meeting
the need for it in some other way; and

» any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities,
and the extent to which that could be moderated.

Page 34



The development of 50 dwellings adjacent to Malborough constitutes major development in
the AONB. The Council’s landscape specialist has concluded that the proposed
development fails to conserve or enhance the landscape and as such the proposal is
contrary to adopted and emerging development plan policy. This weighs heavily against the
development in the planning balance having regard to the great weight which is to be given to
conserving the scenic value of the AONB.

Paragraph 116 requires that major development in the AONB should be refused except in
exceptional circumstances and when it can be demonstrated they are in the public interest.
Consideration of such applications should be assessed against three tests as follows:

(i) The need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations,
and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy.

Malborough Parish, through a recent Housing Needs Survey and as part of the evidence
base for their Neighbourhood Plan have identified a local need for a minimum of 46 new
dwellings, of which a minimum of 16 affordable homes are required. This need has been
identified to provide for existing housing demand and planned growth of the village over the
plan period. The MNP identifies a vision for the village which includes that it will continue to
be a vibrant, growing and prosperous community with a balanced demographic of residents.

There is an identified need for 16 affordable homes now in the village. The MNP has a target
of achieving 50% affordable homes on sites over 5 dwellings, but it does recognise that
viability may reduce this. The prospect of delivering 16 affordable in isolation, i.e., without
enabling development from market housing is unrealistic in this context. To provide the 16
affordable homes as 50% of a mixed market/affordable scheme would result in a need for 32
homes.

In this case a viability statement has shown that the scheme is not viable with 50% provision;
with a 30% provision of affordable housing however the scheme should deliver a reasonable
but not excessive developer profit, making a viable and deliverable scheme. To achieve 16
dwellings as 30% of a larger scheme equates to approximately 50 dwellings (just over).

As such there is an identified need for the proposed 50 dwellings to serve Malborough.

The proposed development will have a positive impact on the local economy as set out
earlier in this report. If the application is refused Malborough is unlikely to be able to achieve
sustainable population growth which could adversely impact on the economic viability of local
services over time. Limiting the supply of houses below demand can drive up houses prices,
this can result in either local residents having to move out of the area or limiting available
spending on local services as household budgets have to divert more money into housing
costs.

(ii) the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the designated area, or
meeting the need for it in some other way;

Malborough is wholly within the AONB and the AONB boundary surrounds the village for
miles. Malborough has identified a housing need in the village and has set out in the MNP its
vision that the village will continue to be a vibrant, growing and prosperous community with a
balanced demographic of residents.

Page 35



Additional housing to serve the community of Malborough cannot be located outside of the
AONB, the only alternative is to accept that no significant development shall take place at
Malborough. The cost of this would be to prevent the village from sustainable growth and to
limit housing supply, this can drive up house prices making them less accessible for local
residents.

Any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and
the extent to which that could be moderated.

The Ecological Impact Assessment submitted as part of this application sets out appropriate
mitigation measures and meaningful bio-diversity enhancements.

Recreational opportunities will be enhanced through funding for improvements to the
adjacent play area and the local playing field. The green space within the development
which will adjoin the play area will be publically accessible providing additional recreation
land within the village.

It has been highlighted by the Council’s landscape specialist that the proposed development
will not conserve the scenic beauty of this part of the AONB. It is acknowledged that
mitigation measures such as landscaping, provision of green spaces and storey heights of
buildings could mitigate some of this impact but the landscape officer expresses concern that
this is an outline application and therefore there uncertainty about what may come forward.

The LPA will retain full control over what is approved at reserved matters stage and if
approved it will be imperative that the broad principles shown in the illustrative drawings
which show green space, a strong landscaped southern boundary and single storey
dwellings on the southern edge of the site are carried forward into any reserved matters.

Whilst it is acknowledged that there will be some harm to the scenic beauty of the AONB the
extent of this impact can be mitigated through good design and landscaping.

Paragraph 116 requires not only that an application is considered against the three tests set
out above but also that the circumstances of the development are ‘exceptional’.

In this case there is an identified need for 48 homes in Malborough, of which 16 should be
affordable. The MNP wishes to see the 16 affordable units delivered by work commencing
on site at the end of 2017. To be viable the 16 affordable units can only be delivered as part
of a larger housing development of circa 50 dwellings. The delivery of 50 homes in
Malborough, according to the current evidence base, should provide all the village’s housing
need for the plan period in a single plan-led development.

The site has been selected through local consultation and is considered to be the best site
with the least landscape impact; the site is proposed in the emerging Neighbourhood Plan
and has the support of the Parish Council.

These circumstances are considered to be exceptional.

It is concluded that this major development in the AONB demonstrates exceptional
circumstances that are in the public interest and so satisfies the requirements of para 116 of
the NPPF.

Ecology and Bio-diversity

Page 36



The application is supported by an Ecological Impact Assessment which sets out mitigation
and enhancement measures. This has been reviewed by the Council’s ecology specialist
who raises no objection subject to the provision of a Landscape and Environmental
Management Plan and on-going management and maintenance of the Public Open Space.

Drainage

Drainage schemes have been submitted in support of this application which have been
assessed by the Lead Local Flood Authority. They are satisfied that it will be possible to
achieve a SUDs compliant surface water management scheme on the site and raise no
objections subject to conditions.

South West Water raise no objections.

It is considered that the site can be adequately drained with the quantum of development
proposed.

Heritage

The site is outside of the Malborough Conservation Area and buffer zone and will have no
significant impact on its setting.

There is a listed building to the south of the site at Portlemore however the proposed
development will not have any significant impact on it or its setting.

The development is set below the ridge line of the village and will not impact significantly on
the setting of the listed church.

The impact on heritage assets is considered to be acceptable
Environmental dimension balance

The environmental benefits identified are either marginal or essentially mitigation as in the
case of any landscape/ecological measures to be applied to the development. Moreover,
those ‘benefits’ have to be set against the loss of an area of open countryside, leading to a
change in the local environment and landscape and loss of agricultural land.

More important however is the adverse impact on the scenic beauty of the AONB, Heritage
Coast and Undeveloped Coast that has been identified. This can be mitigated to some
extent through good design and landscaping but nevertheless harm will arise. Adopted and
emerging planning policy and the NPPF require that great weight should be given to
conserving the scenic beauty of the AONB

It is concluded that the environmental impacts of the development weigh against the proposal
in the planning balance.

Other Matters

Highways/Access:

Page 37



The Highway Authority initially raised some concerns and queries regarding the highway
impacts of the development but is now satisfied.

The Highway Authority has now had further speed survey information and accepts 43m
visibility to be provided at the junction with Collaton Road. A condition is proposed to deal
with this.

The Highway Authority comments on the Transport Statement (TS) as follows —

The Highway Authority accepts the principle of the Transport Statement in general and the
assumption using evidence that the proposed development would likely add around a total of
30 - 40 vehicle trips to the AM peak flow and 30 - 40 two way vehicle trips to the PM peak
flow.

Notwithstanding the above needed typing corrections the principle of 50 houses in this
location is considered acceptable noting the correct junction assumptions in the Transport
Statement. The Highway Authority would have preferred to see some junction counts and
PICARDY capacity analysis undertaken especially at the A381/Collaton Road junction to
show the Ratio of Flow to Capacity results, but this has not been provided. On the agreed
basis the site will only generate around 30 - 40 trips in each of the two busiest hours of day
The Highway Authority would not wish to object on lack of information grounds here noting
the NPPF recommends applications should not be refused on transport capacity grounds
unless the impact is severe on the road network. Current Highway Authority surveys show in
the busiest hours of the day around 70 vehicles use the junction of Collaton Road/A381 so
adding 40 additional movements would equate to a total number of 110, which is around 1
vehicle every 45 seconds on average. In this case the impact is not considered severe.

The Highway Authority also comments that:

The private road intended for upgrade and Section 38 adoption currently has no 30mph
speed limit and therefore in order to introduce a speed limit a S106 contribution may be
necessary.

None of the side road junctions on Collaton Road have informal pedestrian drop crossings
with tactile paving (0 - 6mm in height). A drawing has now been provided showing the
developer will undertake these improvements under the remit of a Section 278 legal
agreement.

A give way line and visibility splay is required across the changed priority private road
junction. It is recommended this is added to the drawings submitted at this stage. This again
can be dealt with at S38/278 stage.

S106 requirements:

£5000.00 for speed limit Traffic Regulation Order adjustments. To be paid prior to
commencement of development.

£300.00 per dwelling for Travel Plan Vouchers to be provided by the developer on occupation
of each dwelling. To be included in a welcome and travel pack and distributed by the
developer.

The highway and access impacts of the development are considered to be acceptable.

Page 38



Primary residence

The MNP includes a policy requiring all new housing to be subject to conditions restricting
occupation to people for whom their primary residence will be the new dwelling. This is
proposed to prevent new homes from being bought as holiday homes and as a result failing
to provide homes for local people. This policy is not reflected in the JLP and it is arguable as
to whether or not it complies with the NPPF. Other Council’s, notably St Ives, have adopted
such a policy.

The MNP is still an emerging document and weight can be accorded to its policies depending
on their conformity with adopted local and national policy and the extent of objections. At
present it is considered that little weight can be given to this policy and it would be
inappropriate to apply a condition of this nature until the policy is much more advanced.

Planning Balance

Whist this authority can demonstrate a robust 5 year housing land supply based on the
evidence base of the emerging JLP, its adopted polices for the supply of housing are out of
date as the adopted development plan makes provision only up to 2016. As such it is
relevant to consider this application in the context of paragraph 14 of the NPPF.

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF sets out a presumption in favour of sustainable development
subject to two criteria, the first being that planning permission should be granted unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole:

Benefits of the development:

» Provision of 50 new dwellings within Malborough
» Provision of 16 new affordable homes within Malborough
» Economic benefit to the local economy during construction

» Economic benefit to the local economy through added spending and use of facilities by
new residents.

* Maintaining the vitality and viability of the village through sustainable growth

» Plan-led development to serve an identified need for housing in the locally preferred

location with the least harmful landscape impact

Provision of additional public open space within the village

Significant adverse impacts of the development:

» Adverse impact on the scenic beauty of the AONB, Heritage Coast and Undeveloped
Coast

The second criteria is that planning permission should be granted unless specific policies in
the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. Footnote 9 of this paragraph gives
examples of policies which can restrict development and this includes AONB policies, set out
in paras 115 and 116 of the NPPF.

Paragraph 116 is a restrictive policy which indicates that planning permission should be

refused for major developments in these designated areas except in exceptional
circumstances and where it can be demonstrated they are in the public interest. As has been

Page 39



set out earlier in this report however it is considered that the proposed development is
exceptional and is in the public interest.

It is considered that, on balance, the benefits of the proposed development outweigh the
harm and the proposed scheme represents sustainable development. It is recommended
that conditional planning permission be granted.

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Planning Policy

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The relevant development plan policies are set out below:

South Hams LDF Core Strategy

CS1 Location of Development

CS7 Design

CS9 Landscape and Historic Environment
CS10 Nature Conservation

CS11 Climate Change

Development Policies DPD

DP1 High Quality Design

DP2 Landscape Character

DP3 Residential Amenity

DP4 Sustainable Construction

DP5 Conservation and Wildlife

DP6 Historic Environment

DP7 Transport, Access & Parking
DP15 Development in the Countryside

Emerging Joint Local Plan

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the above as the
statutory development plan once it is formally adopted.

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on
determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.

* For current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant
policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may
be given).

Page 40



» Forthe JLP, which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined
by the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections,
and its degree of consistency with the Framework.

The JLP is at a relatively advanced stage of preparation. The precise weight to be given to
policies within the JLP will need to be determined on a case by case basis, having regard to
all of the material considerations as set out on the analysis above.

PLYMOUTH AND SOUTH WEST DEVON JOINT LOCAL PLAN -: PUBLICATION
(as considered by the Full Councils end Feb/Early March 2017)

SPT1 Delivering sustainable development

SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities
SPT3 Provision for new homes

SPT11 Strategic approach to the natural environment

TTV1 Prioritising growth through a hierarchy of sustainable settlements

TTV2 Delivering sustainable development in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area
TTV29 Site allocations in the Smaller Towns and Key Villages

TTV30 Empowering local residents to create strong and sustainable communities
TTV31 Development in the Countryside

DEV1 Protecting amenity and the environment

DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise and land

DEV3 Sport and recreation

DEV4 Playing pitches

DEV8 Meeting local housing need in the Thriving Towns and Villages Policy Area
DEV9 Accessible housing

DEV10 Delivering high quality housing

DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment

DEV22 Development affecting the historic environment

DEV24 Landscape character

DEV25 Undeveloped coast

DEV27 Nationally protected landscapes

DEV28 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation
DEV29 Green and play spaces (including Strategic Green Spaces, Local Green Spaces and
undesignated green spaces)

DEV30 Trees, woodlands and hedgerows

DEV31 Specific provisions relating to transport

DEV32 Meeting the community infrastructure needs of new homes

DEV33 Waste management

DEV34 Delivering low carbon development

DEV35 Renewable and low carbon energy (including heat)

DEV37 Managing flood risk and Water Quality Impacts

South Devon AONB Management Plan
Planning for the South Devon AONB: Planning Guidance Version 1 (South Devon AONB
Partnership)

Malborough Neighbourhood Plan 2016

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010

Page 41



The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into
account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Proposed Conditions In Full:

1. In the case of any matter reserved by this permission application for approval of any reserved
matter must be made not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of
grant of outline planning permission. The development to which this permission relates must
be begun not later than whichever is the later of the following dates:

(i) the expiration of three years from the date of the grant of outline planning permission;
or if later

(ii) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case
of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in accordance with detailed
drawings which shall previously have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. These detailed drawings shall show the following:

(a) the design and external appearance of the proposed buildings;

(b) their siting;

(c) existing (and proposed) (i) site levels (together with proposed (ii) slab levels);

(d) the materials for their construction

(e) the arrangements for the disposal of foul and surface water;

(f) the areas for (i) parking (ii) (and turning) of vehicles (in accordance with the Devon
County Council's parking standards);

(g) all other works including walls fences means of enclosure screening;

(h) the location, extent and layout of open spaces;

(i) the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials, drainage, lighting and method of
construction of all new roads and connection with existing roads.

Reason: To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the
detailed proposals.

3. The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord with drawing numbers
150503 L 01 01 rev B and 4120-003 rev C.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.

4. Prior to their installation details / samples of facing materials, roofing materials and all
surfacing materials to be used in the construction of the proposed development shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
then be carried out in accordance with those samples as approved.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity

Page 42



5. Details of the proposed boundary treatments shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority prior to their installation and shall be implemented prior to first
occupation/use. Thereafter the boundary detail shall be retained and maintained.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in order to protect and enhance the amenities of the
site and locality.

6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a programme of
percolation tests has been carried out in accordance with BRE Digest 365 Soakaway Design
(2016), and the results approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation
with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. A representative number of
tests should be conducted to provide adequate coverage of the site, with particular focus
placed on the locations and depths of the proposed infiltration devices.

Reason: To ensure that surface water from the development is discharged as high up the
drainage hierarchy as is feasible.

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design
of the proposed permanent surface water drainage management system has been submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon
County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The design of this permanent surface
water drainage management system will be informed by the programme of approved BRE
Digest 365 Soakaway Design (2016) percolation tests and in accordance with the principles
set out in the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy (Report Ref. V0O1; dated January
2017) as well as the Proposed Drainage Layout (Drawing No. 4120/0001; Rev. C; dated 24th
May 2017), Proposed Drainage Layout Option 2 (Drawing No. 4120/002, Rev. A, 19th May
2017) and the relevant MicroDrainage calculations (Ref. PCLT 4120 Malborough Crate
Soakaway 1; dated January 2017) and (PCLT Malborough Attenuation 1; dated 121" May
2017).

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is discharged as high up
the drainage hierarchy as is feasible, and is managed in accordance with the principles of
sustainable drainage systems.

Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance.

8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the full details of
the adoption and maintenance arrangements for the proposed permanent surface water
drainage management system have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development’s permanent surface water drainage management
systems will remain fully operational throughout the lifetime of the development.

9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design
of the proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the
development site for the full period of its construction has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the
Lead Local Flood Authority. This temporary surface water drainage management system
must satisfactorily address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface water
runoff from the construction site.

Page 43



Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is appropriately
managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water quality issues, to the surrounding
area.

Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance.

10. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in such a manner as to avoid
damage to the existing trees and hedgerows as shown on the plans, including their root
systems, or other planting to be retained as part of the landscaping scheme, by adopting the
following:

(i) All trees and hedgerows to be preserved should be marked on site and protected during any
operations on site by a fence in accordance with details to be submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development (ii) No fires shall
be lit within the spread of the branches of the trees (iii) No materials or equipment shall be
stored within the spread of the branches of the trees. (iv) any damage to the trees shall be
treated with an appropriate preservative. (v) Ground levels within the spread of the branches
of the trees shall not be raised or lowered in relation to the existing ground level, or trenches
excavated, except in accordance with details shown on the approved plans.

Reason: To protect the existing trees and hedgerows in order to enhance the amenities of
the site and locality.

11. The recommendations, mitigation and enhancement measures of the Ecological Impact
Assessment by ead ecology, dated January 2017, shall be fully implemented prior to the
commencement of the use hereby approved and adhered to at all times. In the event that it is
not possible to do so all work shall immediately cease and not recommence until such time as
an alternative strategy has been agreed in writing with the local planning authority.

Reason: To safeguard the interests of protected species

12. Notwithstanding the details provided, there shall be no external lighting of public areas
including highways unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority through
the submission and agreement with the LPA of a lighting strategy

Reason: To protect the countryside from intrusive development and in the interests of ecology

13. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied unless and until the
vehicular and pedestrian accesses, internal roads, visibility splays and footpaths as approved
have been laid out, surfaced and in all other respects completed to the satisfaction of the local
planning authority. Once completed, the visibility splays shall be retained and maintained free
of all obstruction over 1m high at all times.

Reason: To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles and in the interest of
highway safety.

14. Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a construction
environmental management plan (CEMP) shall be submitted, detailing measures to mitigate
or reduce the impact of the construction activities. This plan shall detailed hours of operation
and hours of deliveries, methods of controlling noise from construction activities, a dust
impact assessment and mitigation assessment, location of contractors compound, location of

Page 44



the storage of materials, wheel washing facilities, details of delivery routes for construction
traffic, provision of car parking for contractors, details of a temporary direction signing
scheme, photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to
commencement of any work. Once approved all construction activities shall be carried out in
accordance with this management plan.

Reason: In the interests of the safety and amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the safety
of highway users.

15. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval
from the Local Planning Authority for, an investigation and risk assessment and, where
necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan detailing how this unsuspected
contamination shall be dealt with.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a verification
report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the local
planning authority.

Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is required to
ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during remediation or other site
works is dealt with appropriately.

16. The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied until the parking, servicing, garaging
areas relating to them in accordance with drawings that shall have been previously submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority have been properly consolidated, surfaced,
laid out and constructed. The parking, servicing and garaging areas shall be kept permanently
available for the parking and manoeuvring of motor vehicles in connection with the
development hereby permitted.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the safety of road users.

17. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any Order revoking, re-
enacting, or further amending that Order), no development of the types describes in Schedule
2, Part 2, Classes A and B including gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure and
means of access shall be erected or constructed between the buildings and the estate roads
unless permission is granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to safeguard the character and visual amenities of the locality.

18. Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any Order revoking,
re-enacting or further amending that Order), no development of the types described in
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C and F of the Order, including the construction of dormers,
roof alterations and provision of hardstandings, shall be carried out on the site, other than that
hereby permitted, unless the permission in writing of the Local Planning Authority is obtained.

Page 45



Reason: To protect the appearance of the area, to ensure adequate space about the buildings
hereby approved, to prevent the increased risk of flooding elsewhere and in the interests of
amenity.

19. The following details shall be submitted at the same time as the layout under the reserved
matters:

(i) An Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement detailing the location, species
and spread of all trees, shrubs, hedges, hard landscaping, boundary treatments existing on the
site, distinguishing those proposed to be removed and those to be retained;

(i) a landscaping scheme showing ground moulding, screen banks, hedgebanks, trees,
shrubs, and hedges, including proposals for protection and maintenance of the landscaping.

(iii)  Details of the hedgerow works required to facilitate the new vehicular access
The scheme submitted shall be fully implemented:

(a) in the planting season following the substantial completion of the development

(b) in tandem with each phase of the development as set out under condition above, and must
be implemented not later than the planting season following the completion the development
and the plants shall be protected, maintained and replaced as necessary to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a minimum period of five years following the
date of the completion of the planting.

Reason: To protect and enhance the visual amenities of the site and locality.

20. All tree and hedgerows identified by condition 19 as to be retained shall not be felled or
removed without prior written agreement from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and wildlife conservation

21. The following details shall be submitted at the same time as the layout under the reserved
matters:

(i) A landscape and ecology mitigation and management plan
Reason: To protect and enhance the visual amenities and biodiversity of the site and locality.

22. The proposed road, footways, footpaths, verges, junction, sewers, drains, retaining walls,
service routes, surface water outfall, roof maintenance/vehicle overhang margins,
embankments, and street furniture shall be constructed and laid out in accordance with
details to be approved by the LPA in writing before their construction begins. For this
purpose, plans and sections indicating, as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients,
materials and methods of construction shall be submitted to the LPA.

Reason: To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the
detailed proposals.

23. The development hereby approved shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance

with a phasing programme which shall previously have been submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority in writing.

Page 46



Reason: To ensure the proper development of the site.

24. All off site highway works shall be complete prior to occupation of the first dwelling.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety.

25. No part of the development hereby approved shall be commenced until:

The access road has been laid out, kerbed, drained, lit, constructed up to base course level,
the ironwork has been set to base course level, the visibility splays required by this
permission laid out, the footway on the public highway required by this permission has been
constructed up to base course level and a site compound and car park with turning have
been constructed to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that adequate on site facilities are available for all traffic attracted to the
site during the construction period, in the interest of the safety of all users of the highway

26. Visibility splays shall be provided, laid out and maintained for that purpose at the private
road leading to the site and the junction of Collaton Road where the visibility splays provide
inter visibility between any points on the X and Y axes at a height of 0.6 metres above the
adjoining carriageway level and the distance back from the nearer edge of the major road
carriageway ( identified as X ) shall be 2.4 metres and the visibility distances along the nearer
edge of the major road carriageway ( identified as Y ) shall be a minimum of 43 metres in a
easterly direction.

Reason: To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles.

27. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.’

The development shall be carried out at all times in strict accordance with the approved
scheme, or such other details as may be subsequently agreed in writing by the District Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure, in accordance with guidance in paragraph 3.69 for South Hams
Development Policy DP6 and paragraph 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(2012), that an appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be affected
by the development.

Proposed Informatives in full:

1. This scheme has been supported because it has been demonstrated through the
illustrative plans that an appropriate density of development and provision of green
space can be achieved on the site. The Council wish to see a similar quantum of green
space to that shown on the illustrative plans included in any Reserved Matters
application.

2. Any reserved matter(s) application should provide a mix of housing tenures, types and

sizes to help support the creation of a mixed, balanced and inclusive community, which
also considers local need.

Page 47



. This authority has a pro-active approach to the delivery of

development. Early pre-application engagement is always encouraged.

In accordance with Article 35(2) of the Town and Country Planning
Development Management Procedure (England) Order 2015 (as amended) in
determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has

endeavoured to work proactively and positively with the applicant, in

line with National Planning Policy Framework, to ensure that all

relevant planning considerations have been appropriately addressed.

. The responsibility for ensuring compliance with the terms of the

approval rests with the person(s) responsible for carrying out the
development. The Local Planning Authority uses various means to
monitor implementation to ensure that the scheme is built or carried

out in strict accordance with the terms of the permission. Failure to
adhere to the approved details can render the development unauthorised
and vulnerable to enforcement action.

. If your decision requires the discharge of conditions then you must
submit an application for each request to discharge these conditions.
The current fee chargeable by the Local Planning Authority is £97 per
request. Application forms are available on the Council's website.

. This permission is to be read in conjunction with the Section 106
Obligation dated xxxxxxx between South Hams District Council and xxxxxxx

Page 48



Agenda Item 6b
PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT

Case Officer: Clare Stewart Parish: Totnes Ward: Totnes

Application No: 0266/16/FUL

Agent/Applicant: Applicant:

Mr Ernest Tsui Mr Lam

25 Maidenshaw Road 5 Christina Parade
Epsom Totnes

Surrey Devon

KT19 8HF TQ9 5UU

Site Address: 5 Christina Parade, Totnes, Devon, TQ9 5UU
Development: Erection of 3 bed terrace house with garden and relocation of garages
Reason item is being put before Committee: Brought by Ward Members to consider issues

raised regarding access and possible encroachment into a wildlife area, and concerns raised
by local residents and Town Council.

e

DU TR EN
S\
e =

— ,E‘E“.‘ o

Page 49



Recommendation: Conditional approval

Conditions

Time limit

Approved plans

Final drainage scheme

Garages not be used for commercial purposes

Removal of permitted development rights for means of enclosure
Construction Management Plan to be submitted.

No external lighting on the garages.

Landscaping scheme

Once completed a bat roost shall be provided.

CoNeORWN =

Key issues for consideration:

Principle of development, design, street scene, highways, neighbour amenity, drainage.

Site Description:

The site is located at the end of a 2 storey residential terrace dating from the 1960s and
comprising retail ground floor units together with residential units above. The dwellings
generally are clad with white timber and comprise a row of near identical rendered two storey
properties with their Atcost style flat roofed garaging set in a row adjacent to No. 5.

Access to the site runs in front of the units via a private drive and connects to the A385 via
Weston Lane.

The Proposal:

The proposal includes the erection of a matching end terrace 3 bedroomed dwelling adjacent
No.5 Christina Parade together with the demolition of adjacent garaging and their replacement
with timber gable roofed garage/workshops.

Revised plans were submitted during the life of the application to address concerns regarding
access to the new garages.

Consultations:
* County Highways Authority — Standing advice

« Drainage Specialist — No objection subject to condition to secure final soakaway design and
implementation

* Totnes Town Council — “Clirs raised concern over relocation of garaging that could
encroach into a wildlife area impacting trees and bats. There were also concerns over the
access route from Christina Park which is used by children, elderly and disabled residents
to access shops, the school and the town.”

Page 50



Representations:
One letter of objection has been received, with concerns raised summarised as:

* Access is onto a private road, not aware residents have given consent for it to be
used.

Relevant Planning History

» 56/2387/15/, Erection of 3 bed terrace house with garden and relocation of garages.
Withdrawn.

ANALYSIS
Principle of Development/Sustainability:

The site is located well within the Totnes Development Boundary, and the proposal raises no
objection in general sustainability terms having regard to the NPPF.

Design/Street Scene:

The existing terrace of properties is of unexceptional appearance but the proposed additional
property would sit comfortably at the end of the terrace. The use of matching materials and a
carefully designed garden has created a new property which would sit comfortably within the
location whilst also providing a considerable improvement to the adjacent garaging units. The
existing units are ‘of their age and looking tired. The proposals show those garages being
replaced by a better quality and interesting gabled design of garaging sited so as to allow
access from the existing drive whilst giving room for the garden/curtilage of the proposed
dwelling.

Drainage:

The Council’s Drainage Specialist initially raised concerns regarding surface water drainage
and revised details were submitted. The Drainage Specialist has advised that the soakaway
now proposed will need further design work but considers this can be appropriately dealt with
by condition in this case.

Ecology/Trees:

Concern has been raised by Totnes Town Council regarding encroachment into a wildlife area.
Based on the submitted information the new garages would be constructed on an existing area
of hardstanding adjacent to the vegetated area. Given the flat roof nature of the existing garage
structures to be demolished it is considered unlikely that they are used as a bat roost.
Neighbour Amenity:

The proposals would be sited so as not to impact adversely on the existing residents of the

terrace. Accordingly, both the existing dwellings and the locality would not suffer an amenity
loss through the proposals.

Page 51



Highways/Access:

There have been concerns raised over ownership of the access road. However, this is not a
planning matter and is not material to the determination of the current application. DCC
Highways have referred to their Standing Advice. Revised plans were received during the life
of the application to show how the garages would be accessed if vehicles were parked in the
existing spaces outside Christina Parade, and on this basis the proposal is considered
acceptable. A condition is recommended to ensure the garages are not used for commercial
purposes, as this would raise additional issues that would need to be assessed.

The Town Council have raised regarding the access route from Christina Park. This is not
actually a public right of way and access could be restricted at any time by the landowner. The
submitted plans indicate a pedestrian route would be retained, however it is recommended that
permitted development rights in respect of boundary treatments be removed as this would help
prevent the future blocking up of the route.

Update since June committee:
At the June Committee members were concerned about a number of issues:
* Question over the ownership of the land and the validity of Certificate B, indicating that
the applicant owns the land within which he intends to carry out the work.
» Whether the right of way was a prescriptive right of way by virtue of it having been
used for 20 years or more
» The width of the garages. They do not appear to be wide enough to accommodate a
car and be able to open the door.
Additional conditions were requested:
» Construction Management Plan so as to prevent the right of way being blocked during
construction
» A condition which ensures there is no lighting from the garages shining onto the
Bridgetown Corridor area
CliIr Vint also asked for a condition which required replacement tree planting and maybe the
inclusion of a bat roost.

The applicant submitted Certificate B again indicating that he had served notice on all of the
property owners in Christina Parade. That notice was served on 26/6/2015 and 20/10/2016. In
addition a revised plan was submitted indicating the garages to be 6 metres in length and 3
metres wide. He has also indicated that the public footpath will remain after the development
has taken place, which is also apparent on the revised garage plan.

Update September 2017.

The applicant has also submitted a letter serving notice on the owners of the Spar shop. The
notice was served on 315t August 2017. No representations haven been received from those
owners.

The additional conditions requested have been added to the decision.

The Planning Balance:

The principle of new residential development in this local is acceptable in planning terms. The
proposed dwelling is considered acceptable in design terms having regard to the existing site
context, and notwithstanding concerns raised by third parties the access arrangement is
considered to be acceptable. The garages are wide enough to allow for a car to be parked

Page 52



inside and with room to open the doors. Officers consider there are no planning reasons why
permission should be denied, and the application is recommended for approval subject to
conditions as detailed above.

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Planning Policy

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The relevant development plan policies are set out below:

South Hams LDF Core Strategy

CS1 Location of Development

CS7 Design

CS9 Landscape and Historic Environment

Development Policies DPD

DP1 High Quality Design

DP2 Landscape Character

DP3 Residential Amenity

DP4 Sustainable Construction
DP7 Transport, Access & Parking

South Hams Local Plan
SHDC 1 Development Boundaries

Emerging Joint Local Plan

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the above as the
statutory development plan once it is formally adopted.

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on
determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.

» For current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant
policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may
be given).

» Forthe JLP, which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined
by the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections,
and its degree of consistency with the Framework.

The JLP is at a relatively advanced stage of preparation. The precise weight to be given to

policies within the JLP will need to be determined on a case by case basis, having regard to
all of the material considerations as set out on the analysis above.

Page 53



PLYMOUTH AND SOUTH WEST DEVON JOINT LOCAL PLAN -: PUBLICATION
(as considered by the Full Councils end Feb/Early March 2017)

SPT1 Delivering sustainable development

SPT11 Strategic approach to the natural environment

TTV25 Spatial priorities for development in Totnes

DEV1 Protecting amenity and the environment

DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise and land

DEV10 Delivering high quality housing

DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment

DEV28 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation

DEV37 Managing flood risk and Water Quality Impacts

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into
account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Recommended conditions in full:

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord strictly with drawing
number(s) ETA-5CP-050 Rev C, ETA-5CP-053 Rev C, ETA-5CP- 054 Rev C received
by the Local Planning Authority on 18th May 2016;

ETA-5CP-052 Rev A, ETA-5CP-074 Rev A, ETA-5CP-075 Rev A,ETA-5CP-076 Rev A,
Proposed Elevations Finishes Study received by the Local Planning Authority on 7th
July 2016;

Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment received by the Local Planning Authority on 29th
September 2016.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with the
drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.

PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION: Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to
commencement of development details of the final design for the management of
surface water shall be submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. Such details shall include: 1. Redesign the soakaways for a 1:100 year + 40%
cc return period 2. If the soakaways cannot be accommodated on site then a mitigating
scheme shall be submitted and agreed with the LPA.

The drainage scheme shall be installed in strict accordance with the approved plans,

maintained and retained in accordance with the agreed details for the life of the
development.

Page 54



Reason: To ensure surface water runoff does not increase to the detriment of the public
highway or other local properties as a result of the development.

. The garages hereby approved shall be used only for the storage of a private motor
vehicle(s) and/or domestic storage and for no business or commercial purposes.

Reason: To safeguard the residential amenities of adjoining occupiers.

. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any Order revoking, re-enacting,
or further amending that Order), no gate, fence, wall or other means of enclosure other
than any shown on the approved plans shall be erected or constructed unless
permission is granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to safeguard the character and visual amenities of the locality.

. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Management Plan shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authoirty. It will include, details of the timetable of the
works, daily hours of construction, road closure, number and sizes of vehicles visiting
the site in connection with the development and the frequency of their visits, hours
during which no construction traffic will be present at the site and the means of enclosure
of the site during construction works. This plan shall be strictly adhered to during the
construction of the development hereby permitted unless variation is agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of public and highway safety.

. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority a scheme of landscaping, which shall include indications of all
existing trees and hedgerows on the site and details of any to be retained, together with
measures for their protection in the course of development. All planting, seeding, turfing
or hardsurfacing comprised in the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out by
the end of the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the
buildings or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants
which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next
planting season with others of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority gives written consent to any variation. The landscaping scheme shall be strictly
adhered to during the course of the development and thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the provision of an appropriate landscaping scheme in the interests
of the visual amenities of the locality and to assimilate the development into its
surroundings.

. There shall be no external lighting on the garages hereby permitted without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect wildlife using the adjacent Bridgetown green space.

Page 55



9. Prior to the occupation of the garages hereby permitted, details of and the location of a
bat roost shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The roost

shall then be erected in accordance with that agreement.

Reason: In the interests of bats within the locality.

Page 56



Agenda Item 6¢
PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT

Case Officer: Wendy Ormsby Parish: Dartmouth Ward: Dartmouth and East Dart

Application No: 2686/17/VAR

Agent/Applicant:
SHDC
Follaton House
Plymouth Road
Totnes
TQ9 5NE

Site Address: Admiral Court, Nelson Road, Dartmouth, Devon

Development: Application for variation of condition 2 of granted planning consent 0901/16/FUL.

Reason item is being put before Committee: Applicant is SHDC

CINNRE

Page 57



Recommendation: Conditional Approval

Conditions

Accords with plans

Drainage to be agreed

Materials to match existing units within site

Unsuspected contamination

Details of hardsurfacing to be agreed

Parking to be provided and retained

Site Description:

Admiral Court is an existing, small industrial estate on the western edge of Dartmouth. Access is from
Nelson Road which runs to the east of the site, the A3122 main road into Dartmouth runs along the
southern site boundary. Open countryside lies to the north and west.

The site is well screened from the main road by mature vegetation and bunds and there is screen
planting surrounding the site.

Admiral Court currently accommodates 14 light industrial units with parking and circulation space. Work
has commenced on site to implement planning permission 0901/16/FUL

The Proposal:

Planning permission has been granted for the erection of 7 industrial units at Admiral Court. This
application seeks permission to insert one high level window in the rear elevation of each of the units.
The windows measure approx. 1m x 1.2m.

Consultations:

» County Highways Authority — no comment

* Environmental Health Section - no comment

» Town/Parish Council — recommend approval

Representations:

No letters received

Relevant Planning History
0901/16/FUL - Erection of 2no. terraces of industrial units (class B1) — Conditional approval

15/0041/98/10. Engineering works to form access and levelled site for future industrial development
Regulation 3 LPA own development pursuant to Economy & Employment Committee Minute EE
29/97. Land to the north of the A3122 West of Townstal Estate Dartmouth.

Conditional approval: 05 Mar 98

15/0535/06/DC

Construction of 5 industrial units and associated parking Regulation 3 LPA own development
pursuant to a decision by Executive Minute No. E107/05 dated 5th January 2006

Admiral Court Nelson Road Dartmouth

Page 58



Conditional approval: 18 May 06

15/0683/00/F

Construction of factory and offices Dartmouth Gateway Townstal Industrial Estate Dartmouth
Conditional approval: 20 Jul 00

15/0610/75/3

Outline application for part residential and part employment use B.1 B.2 & B.8 including landscaping
and reservation of land for a proposed link road. Area west of Townstal Dartmouth.
Conditional approval: 26 Sep 96

ANALYSIS
Principle of Development/Sustainability:

The principle of the development has been accepted in the original grant of planning permission
0901/16/FUL

Design/Landscape:

The site is well screened from the main road and the wider landscape. The proposed windows will
have no adverse visual impact nor will they result in detrimental light spill.

Neighbour Amenity:

There are no properties nearby that would be adversely affected by the proposals

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Planning Policy

Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the
development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The relevant development plan policies are set out below:

South Hams LDF Core Strategy

CS1 Location of Development

CS7 Design

CS9 Landscape and Historic Environment
CS10 Nature Conservation

CS11 Climate Change

Development Policies DPD
DP1 High Quality Design

DP2 Landscape Character
DP3 Residential Amenity

DP4 Sustainable Construction
DP5 Conservation and Wildlife

Page 59



Emerging Joint Local Plan

The Plymouth and South West Devon Joint Local Plan (the JLP) will replace the above as the
statutory development plan once it is formally adopted.

Annex 1 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) provides guidance on
determining the weight in relation to existing and emerging development plan policies.

* For current development plan documents, due weight should be given to relevant
policies according to their degree of consistency with the Framework (the closer the
policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may
be given).

» Forthe JLP, which is an emerging development plan, the weight is to be determined
by the stage of its preparation, the extent to which there are unresolved objections,
and its degree of consistency with the Framework.

The JLP is at a relatively advanced stage of preparation. The precise weight to be given to
policies within the JLP will need to be determined on a case by case basis, having regard to
all of the material considerations as set out on the analysis above.

DEV1 Protecting amenity and the environment

DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise and land

DEV15 Supporting the rural economy

DEV24 Landscape character

DEV28 Protecting and enhancing biodiversity and geological conservation

Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into
account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report.

Proposed conditions in full

1. The development hereby approved shall in all respects accord strictly with drawing
numbers 1981-000, 1981-001, 1981-005, 1981-006 and SK1-UA008196-UU41
submitted in respect of application ref 0901/16/FUL and drawing numbers 1981-002
revB, 1981-003 rev B submitted in support of this variation of condition application.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with
the drawings forming part of the application to which this approval relates.

2. The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the buildings hereby approved
shall match the materials used in the existing buildings within Admirals Court unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area.

3. Notwithstanding the submitted details, the development hereby permitted shall not be
occupied until further details for the management of surface water that are SUDs
complaint have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved drainage scheme shall be installed in strict accordance with the approved

Page 60



details, maintained and retained in accordance with the agreed details for the life of
the development.

Reason: To ensure surface water runoff does not increase to the detriment of the
public highway or other local properties as a result of the development.

. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, an investigation and
risk assessment and, where necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a
verification report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved
remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to
and approved, in writing, by the local planning authority.

Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is
required to ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during
remediation or other site works is dealt with appropriately.

. Prior to the construction of the buildings above slab level details of the materials to be
used for hardsurfacing within site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area.

. The buildings hereby approved shall not be occupied until the parking and servicing
areas relating to them, as shown on the submitted drawings and in accordance with
details that shall have been previously been agreed pursuant to condition 6 have been
properly consolidated, surfaced, laid out and constructed. The parking and servicing
areas shall be kept permanently available for the parking and manoeuvring of motor
vehicles in connection with the development hereby permitted.

Reason: To ensure that adequate and satisfactory provision is made for the parking
and manoeuvring of vehicles clear in the interests of road safety and amenity.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



South Hams District Council AQenda ltem 7

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 4-Oct-17

Appeals Update from 22-Jul-17 to 22-Sep-17

Ward  Blackawton and Stoke Fleming

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:
Ward Charterlands

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:
APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

3076/16/PDM
Mr D Bradford
Prior Approval for proposed change of use of agricultural building, to dwelling
(Class C3) and for associated operational development (Class Q(a+b))

Land North Of Higher Cotterbury At Sx82509, Blackawton, TQ9 7DA

Appeal Lodged

27-July-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3176334

1621/16/FUL
Mr and Mrs Long
READVERTISEMENT (Revised Plan Received) Erect replacement dwelling
Waves Edge, Challaborough, TQ7 4JB

Appeal Lodged

27-July-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3176134

1826/16/FUL

Galion Homes (Bigbury) Ltd

Demolition of existing buildings and the proposed development of 4 detached
four-bedroom houses and new landscaping on the site formerly known as
the Bay Cafe (resubmission of 2701/15/FUL)

The Bay Café, Marine Drive, Bigbury On Sea, TQ7 4AS

Appeal Lodged

08-September-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3171733

Ward  Cornwood and Sparkwell

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

2660/16/FUL
Mr D Watson
Conversion of farmhouse and eastern wing of hotel to 9 self contained apartments with
associated parking.

Smithaleigh Hotel, Smithaleigh, PL7 5AX

Appeal Decided

12-June-2017

Dismissed (Refusal)

14-September-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3172347

Ward  Dartington and Staverton

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

3326/16/PDM

Mr & Mrs Manfred Tillorook
Prior approval for a proposed change of use of Agricultural Building to a dwellinghouse
(Class C3) and for associated operational development (Class Q).

Dodbrook Barn, Staverton, TQ9 6NZ

Appeal Lodged

27-July-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3177062

3674/16/FUL

Dr G Hammersley
Change of use from agricultural land to garden.

Page 63

APP/K1128/W/17/3177911



LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :

APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Old Orchard Barn, Ashburton, TQ13 7LZ
Appeal Lodged

25-July-2017

Ward Dartmouth and East Dart

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

4182/16/FUL
Mr N Unwin
Erection of 2 dwellings with associated parking and gardens
Land at SX 861 510, Seymour Drive, Dartmouth

Appeal Lodged

27-July-2017

APP/K1128/W/3174194

Ward  Ermington and Ugborough

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

4019/16/HHO
Mr T Hopwood
Householder application for erection of a single storey rear extension.
2 Erme Bridge Cottages, Ermington, PL21 9NN

Appeal Lodged

21-August-2017

APP/K1128/D/17/3178034

Ward Loddiswell and Aveton Gifford

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Ward Newton and Noss

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Ward Stokenham

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:
APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:

0302/17/FUL

BBH Chartered Architects Ltd
Provision of dwelling and associated landscaping including restoration works to 18th
Century walled garden (variation to planning permission 02/2222/14/F).

Old Walled Garden, Little Efford Lane, Aveton Gifford, Kingsbridge, TQ7 4PA
Appeal Lodged

28-July-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3177770

3976/16/FUL

Market Square Limited

Demolition of single dwelling and the erection of two detached dwellings.
Whitegates, Parsonage Road, Newton Ferrers, PL8 1AS

Appeal Decided

15-June-2017

Upheld (Conditional approval)

21-September-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3173207

0525/17/HHO

Mrs K Hollingworth

Householder application for proposed new garage and to change Juliet
balcony to balcony by adding glazed balustrading around existing flat roof
Cartref, Kiln Lane, Stokenham, TQ7 2SQ

Appeal Lodged

24-August-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3180061

3536/16/CLE
Mr W Lomax

APP/K1128/X/17/3168674

Page 64



PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:
APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Ward Totnes

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Application for a lawful development certificate for existing unrestricted full residential
use for dwelling (resubmission of 2199/16/CLE)

Higher Borough, Chivelstone.

Appeal Decided

09-March-2017

Withdrawn

31-July-2017

3611/16/VAR

Mr S Bryson

Application for variation of condition number 3 (ancillary accommodation restriction
for 'The Shippen' following grant of planning permission 10/0326/13/F

The Shippen, Locks Farm, East Prawle, TQ7 2BU

Appeal Decided

12-June-2017

Upheld (Conditional approval)

21-September-2017

3811/16/FUL

Mrs N Dunstan

Retrospective use of land for storage of a one caravan for a period of 6 months and
construction of a storage building

Dunstone Cross Water Storage Tank, Dunstone Cross, Kingsbridge, TQ7 2EP
Appeal Decided

15-June-2017

Dismissed (Refusal)

21-September-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3171783

APP/K1128/W/17/3173720

0368/17/FUL APP/K1128/W/17/3179162
Mrs S Woodman

Application for erection of dwelling.

Springfields, Jubilee Road, Totnes, TQ9 5BW

Appeal Lodged

24-August-2017

Ward  Wembury and Brixton

APPLICATION NUMBER :
APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :

APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

APPLICATION NUMBER :

APPELLANT NAME:
PROPOSAL :

LOCATION :
APPEAL STATUS :
APPEAL START DATE:

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:

0594/17/0PA
Mrs J Wright

APP/K1128/W/17/3176148

Outline planning application with some matters reserved for construction of a single dwelling

Field At Ford Road, Wembury
Appeal Lodged
27-July-2017

3977/16/FUL

Blue Cedar Homes

Development of 15 age-restricted dwellings and associated infrastructure with details
of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale

Land South Of St Werburgh Close, Wembury

Appeal Lodged

11-August-2017

APP/K1128/W/17/3179284

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



South Hams District Council

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 4-Oct-17
Appeal Hearings/Public Inquiry from 22-Jul-17

Ward  Bickleigh and Cornwood

APPLICATION NUMBER : 04/1129/15/F APP/K1128/W/16/3167179

APPELLANT NAME: Taylor Wimpey Exeter

PROPOSAL : Re-advertisement (Receipt of amended site location plan)for construction of 65 no.
dwellings together with associated landscaping, car parking and infrastructure

LOCATION : Proposed Development Site At Sx 4744 6168, Allern Lane, Tamerton Foliot

APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged

APPEAL START DATE: 02-February-2017

TYPE OF APPEAL Public inquiry

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING OR INQUIRY:  17-October-2017

LOCATION OF HEARING/INQ: Council Chamber, Follaton House

APPEAL DECISION:

APPEAL DECISION DATE:
Ward Charterlands

APPLICATION NUMBER : 1826/16/FUL APP/K1128/W/17/3171733
APPELLANT NAME: Galion Homes (Bigbury) Ltd
PROPOSAL : Demolition of existing buildings and the proposed development of 4 detached four-bedroom

houses and new landscaping on the site formerly known as the Bay Cafe
(resubmission of 2701/15/FUL)

LOCATION : The Bay Café, Marine Drive, Bigbury On Sea, TQ7 4AS

APPEAL STATUS : Appeal Lodged

APPEAL START DATE: 08-September-2017

TYPE OF APPEAL Informal hearing

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING OR INQUIRY: 19-December-2017

LOCATION OF HEARING/INQ: Cary Room, Follaton House, Plymouth Road, Totnes, TQ9 5NE

APPEAL DECISION:
APPEAL DECISION DATE:

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



SH-P1 Major apps with extensions
100.0%

T5.0%

| o~
March 2017
= Monfhly Target: 50.0%

é\@“r&n&@

S

50.0%

25.0%

0.0%

@ Monthly Values - Monthly Target

SH-P4 Major applications excluding extensions

40%

659 ebe?

[ 1] SH-P2 Minor apps with extensions [ i ] SH-P3 Other apps with extensions [ i ]
100.0% 100.0%
75.0% 75.0%
50.0% 50.0%
25.0% 25.0%
0.0% 0.0%

‘P}Qs

m@ S N & &
&*ﬁwﬁé‘@@@é@@‘g @ﬁﬁﬁﬁeﬁﬁ&j
@ Monthly Values -8 Monthly Target @ Monthly Values -8 Monthly Target
i} SH-P5 Minor applications excluding extensions i} SH-P6 Other applications excluding extensions i}
75% 100%

@«a@@@@@@

P A

SH-PT No of apps registered
300

May 2017
= Monthly Values:

200

P

$H-P2 Planning Workload L]

200
2 g

750

36‘ &

& S S S S S S S

ﬁg@@@@y@g

&S S S LS

ASAEEE

5H-P9 Applications determined o

& G o

,g‘ & f e & S F IS

Q Wa)| epusby



Page 70



SH-P10 Apps registered compared to last year i ] $H-P11 Fee Income from Planning Apps Li] $H-P12 Fee Income Vs Last year

100 £150,000.00 £100,000.00
£50,000.00
50 £100,000.00 I
B0 SN B
o £50,000.00 I
ol - “s000000
June 2017 I
-50 = Value: -17 -£100,000.00
A -(‘t

Y o A
F & &S S S @-9-19*&@"" G NN

GO SIS ﬁ‘g#‘ﬁﬁ&wf ﬁ@@?@@y@;ﬁ

SH-P13 Pre-Apps received compared to last year [ ] $H-P14 Fee Income from Pre-Apps compared to last year

20 £20,000.00
.
2 ]
0 o - L _— £10,000.00
? H ™
N .
=20 £0.00 — — — -

40 -£10,000.00

Q Q& Q A A 3 a 3 & S



SH-E1 Enforcement Cases Outstanding Backlog [i] SH-E2Enforcement Cases Closed Backlog i)
150 an

o0 | March 2017

= Monthly Values: 111
sn I I
n l l l —
WA A
£

T
7
a
’)

> 5 o + &
& d
@ K ° w o \é\ #P f 29& o 5:59 35" @@ﬁ’
SH-EJ Enf Cases Received (since March 2016) L) $H-E4 Enf Cases Closed (since March 2016) L] SH-E5 Enforcement Cases Outstanding o
75 40 400

E]

8

-
[=]

§
|| |

S 11 11l

:

N ul

£ £ A A

AAPEESE JAPELRS SRS AS

Enforcement cases closed: Retrospective applications i} Enforcement cases closed: Remedial action i}
20 20
m I I
. Im - ] . . - I - . - - —
@@@ I_P-(\ c?,@ 3-(\ ?& .-51'5 & @-(‘ 3§° 'ﬁ, d\@ ol r FP»(\ vﬁe} -51(\ \?5\ @@\ »(\ v@ y @ ?f d\rﬁ :‘&& ‘9@? 'P{\

@ Monthly Values @ Quarterly Values @ Monthly Values @ Quarterly Values



Enforcement cases closed: No breach found

75

' Monthly Values

¢/ abed

@ Quarterly Values

Li] Enforcement cases closed: Mot expedient
50
25 I
0 l [ [ . I [ | [ |
] A A A, A, A A A, B A A
S s & & s s & F '
& ¥ ,Fgf of & o +® ¥ 3 ¥ &

'Ir.

@ Monthly Values @ Quarterly Values



W2PEC 30 Appeal Decisions (Officer Delegated)
]

: ] l

R N A S &
A A
W2ZPEC 28 Appeal Decisions
2
_Uﬂ
)
Q-
®
. ]
W o o ) ) 2

W2PEC A Appeals allowed - officer decision
4

0 R
&
A A

@ Monthly Values -8 Monthly Target

&
o

A

G

#

W2PEC 31 Appeal Decisions (Committee)
3

2

1

B I B
'p-('l q?-i'- q.p\‘ @-G q?»i\

ﬁf f Qﬁ ‘zsg} \"@ 5‘3&

%

BV204a Total planning appeals allowed
7.5

5

) l I
. |
2

AT A S L S S A
5 &
5&@ . @P#\ ‘!ﬁt? wﬁﬁ @ 9& b ?‘fb
@ Monthly Values -8 Monthly Target
WZPEC 29 Appeals allowed - member against officer decision
3
2
| I
0
A A A A A A A A
oy & £ ' ) & & &
£ &
Sﬁ Q@\f\ f 3 @ ~s§$ ‘;\‘) @ﬁ)



	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6a 0549/17/OPA
	6b 0266/16/FUL
	6c 2686/17/VAR
	7 Planning Appeals Update
	Appeal hearing and inquiry update

	8 Planning Performance Indicators

